
Quinquennial Report 

Supplemental Information 

As a result of the significant volume of data necessary to satisfactorily address item 
XXI A-l, the Financial State of the Diocese - Statistics/General Economic Sihlation, 
this supplemental information has been compiled. It contains multiple audited 
financial statements covering the years 1998 - 2002, and the budget for the present 
year (Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2003) for the nvelve Diocesan organizations. This 
information is summarized by section according to the index which follows on the 
succeeding page. A thirteenth section contains the information specific to item XXI 
A-3, assistance made to other dioceses and contributions towards the needs of the 
Apostolic.See and the Peter's Pence Offering. 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington 
XXIII. FINANCIAL STATE OF THE DIOCESE 

Statistical Index 

Ref: 

1. Catholic Diocese of Wilrrrlngton, Inc. 
2. Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
3. Catholic Diocese Foundation 
4. Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
5. Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
6. St. Mark's High School 
7. Catholic Charities, Inc. 
8. Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. 
9. Children's Home, Inc. 
10. Seton Villa, Inc. 
11. Siena Hall, Inc. 
12. St. Thomas More Academy 
13. Other Data: Assistance to Other Dioceses; Contributions towards the needs 

of the Apostolic See; Proceeds of the Peter's Pence Collection 
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Enclosures: 

Catholic Diocese of Wilmington 
XXIII. FINANCIAL STATE OF THE DIOCESE 

Statistical Index 

. Entity: Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 3D, 2002 and 2001 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 3D, 1998 and 1997 

• Budget summary for the year ending June 30, 2003 
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PricewaterhouseC.oopers llP 
Two Commerce SqUMe, Suite 1700 
200 I Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimi:e (267) 330 3300 

Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Audit Committee 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets - modified cash basis of the Catholic Diocese 
of Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) as of June 30,2002 and 2001 and the related statements of 
activities and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Diocese's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with aUditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note 1, these financial statements were prepared on the modified cash basis, 
which is a comprehensive basi s of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

The Diocese has not adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SFAS 93), 
"Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations," which requires not-for-profit 
organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future economic benefits of their 
long-lived tangible assets. Also, equipment is expensed at the time of purchase that, in our 
opinion, should be capitalized in order to conform to accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America .. The effects of not complying with SFAS 93 and of not capitalizing 
equipment are not reasonably determinable. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of not recognizing depre<;iation expense of long-lived 
tangible assets and of not capitalizing equipment as discussed in the preceding paragrapb, the 
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the fmancial position 
of the Diocese as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows 
for the years then ended, on the basis of accounting described in Note 1. 

November 6, 2002 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Balance Sheet - Modified Cash Basis 
June 3D, 2002 

2002 2001 

Unrestricted 

Assets General Designated Total Restricted Total 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 543,745 $ 55,037 S 598,782 $ 48,696 $ 647,478 S 1,187,328 

Pooled investments 9,987,268 22,609,387 32,596,655 7,621,397 40,218,052 52,696,923 

Other investments - priests' health 

and welfare trusts 6,056,671 6,056,671 6,056,671 6,989,230 

Other assets (net) 903,538 156,420 1,059,958 64,362 1,124,320 544,990 

Pledges receivable (net) 
16,071,395 16,071,395 7,670,486 

Notes receivable 708,625 708,625 708,625 746,378 

Real estate 1,164,680 1,164,680 1,164,680 1,164,680 

Assets held for affiliates 
71,065,255 71,065,255 80.348,363 

Total assets 3> 13,307,856 $ 28, 877.515 S 42, 185,371 $ 94,871,105 S 137,056,476 SI5I,348,378 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 2,116,859 $ $ 2,; 16,859 S 13,035,824 $ 15,]52,683 S 7,828,375 

Assets due to affiliates 
71,065.255 71,065,255 80,348,363 

T otalliabilities 2,116,859 2.116,859 84,101.079 86,217,938 88.176.738 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 11,190,997 ! ,,190,997 11,190,997 12,763,415 

Un~estricted - designated 28,877,515 28,877,515 28,877,515 32,682,]52 

Temporarily restricted 
5,238,197 5,238,197 12,194,244 

Permanently restricted 
5.531,829 5.531,829 5,531.829 

Total net assets ]1,190,997 28,877,515 40,068,512 10,770,026 50,838,538 63,171 ,640 

Totalliabiliries and net assets S 13,307,856 $28,877,515 $ 42, 185,371 $ 94,&71,]05 $137,056,476 $151,348,378 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-2-
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Balance Sheet· Modified Cash Basis 
June 30,2001 

Unrestricted 

Assets General Designated 

Cash and cash eq uivalents S 761,070 $ 89,857 
Pooled investments 11,115,299 25,492,992 
Other invest."Ilen ts - priests' health 

and welfare trusts 6,989,230 
Other assets (net) 377,567 110,073 
Pledges receivable (net) 

Notes receivable 746,378 
Real estate 1,164,680 
Assets held for affiliates 

Total assets S14,164 1994 $321682,152 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,40 I ,579 $ 
Assets due to affiliates 

Total liabilities 1.401,579 

Net assets: 

Unrestricted - general 12,763,415 
Unrestricted· designated 32,682,152 
Temporarily restricted 

Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 12,763,415 32,682,152 

Total liabilities and net assets $14,164,994 $32,682,152 

2001 

Total Restricted 

$ 850,927 $ 336AOI 

36,608,291 16,088,632 

6,989,230 

487,640 57,350 
7,670,486 

746,378 
1,164,680 

80.348,363 

$46,847,146 S 104.501,232 

$ 1,401,579 $ 6,426,796 

80.348,363 

1,401,579 86,775.159 

12,763,415 
32,682,152 

12,194,244 
5,531.829 

45,445567 17,716,073 

$46,847,146 $ 1{)4,501,232 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Total 

S 1,187,328 

52,696,923 

6,989,230 

544,990 
7,670,486 

746,378 
1,164,680 

80,348,363 

S 151,348,378 

S 7,828,375 

80,348.363 

88,176.738 

12,763,415 
32,682,152 

12,194,244 

5,531,829 

63.171,640 

$ 151.348,378 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets - Modified Cash Basis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

U nrestritted Tem~orari1y Restricled 
Capital Permanently 

General n .. ignated Total General Campaign Restricted Total 
Revenues and other support: 

Assessments 3,171,993 S S 3,171.993 S $ S S 3,171,993 
Annual appeal 2,014,179 2,014,179 2,014,179 
Pooled investment loss (412,662) (1,779,788) (2.192,450) ( 1,077.048) (7,082) (3,276,580) 
Other investment loss 

priests' health and welfare trusts (545,949) (545,949) (545,949) 
Collections 88,260 88,260 947,041 1,035,301 
Contributions 74.631 479,134 553,765 583,374 5,666,921 6,804,060 
CDF Grant 25,000 25,000 25,000 
Priests' insurance premiums 1,223,226 1,.223,226 1,223,226 
Lay employee insurance 

premiums (see Note 4) 5,040,967 5,040,967 5,040,967 
Other 220,887 191,517 412,404 33,623 446,027 

Net assets released 
from restrictions 892.880 12,209.996 13,102,876 (2,187,738) (10.315,138) 

Total revenue and 5,961.908 16,932,363 22.894,271 (2,300,748) (4.655.2221 15,938,224 
other support 

E~penses: 

Program services: 
Catholic Charities 923,416 181,797 1,105,213 1,105,213 
Catholic education 739,488 739,488 739,488 
Communication 87,186 87,186 87,186 
Distributions: 

Education Fund 1,212,588 1,212,588 1,212,588 
Other funds 720,230 720,230 720,230 
National coJlections 974,046 974,046 974,046 
Other 344,940 344,940 344,940 

Pastoral sen-ices 820,355 709,436 1,529,791 1,529.791 

Total program services 2,915,385 3,798,097 6,713,482 6,713.482 

Supporting services: 
Administration 2,529,588 1,785,149 4,314,737 4,314,737 
Capital expenditures 152,368 9,107,002 9,259,370 9,259,370 
Development 300,033 300,033 300,033 
Finance 390,738 390,738 390,738 
Priests' insurance expense 1,016,537 1,016,537 1,016,537 
Lay employee insurance 

expense (see Note 4) 5,030,215 5,030,215 5,030,215 
Lay employee benefits 1,246.214 1,246.214 1.246,214 

Total supporting s:rvic:s 4,618,941 16,938,903 21,557.844 21.557,844 

Total exponses 7,534,326 20,737,000 28.271.326 28.271,326 

Changes in net assets (1,572,418) (3,804,637) (5,377,055) (2,300,748) (4,655,299) (12,333,102) 
Net assets at beginning ofy.ar 12,763,415 32,682.152 45.445,567 10,489.408 1,704,836 5.531,829 63,171,640 

Net assets at end of year S 11,190,997 .$28,877,515 140,068,512 S 8,188,660 S (2,950,463~ S5,531,829 S 50,838,538 

The accompanying notes are an integra1 part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets· Modified Cash Basis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2001 

U I! re.trioted Tem)!orarH:!: Restricted 
Capital Permanently· 

General Designated Total General Campaign Restricted Total 
Reven"es and other support: 

Assessments 2,902,B69 S S 2,902,869 S S 2,902,869 
Annual appeal 2,744,158 2,744,158 2,744,158 
Pooled investment income (loss) (J2B,624) (694,674) (1,023,298) S 29,969 S (94) (993,423) 
Other investment income (1055)-

priests' health and welfare trusts (542,498) (542,498) (542,498) 
Collections 49,882 127,961 177,843 1,088,474 1,266,317 
Contributions 70,941 528,480 599,421 680,789 3,569,631 4,849,841 
CDP Grant 5,298 25,000 30,298 30,298 
Priests' insurance premiums 1,059,436 1,059,436 1,059,436 
Lay employee insurance 

premiums (see Note 4) 3,829,693 3,829,693 3,829,693 
Other 300,B 14 106,917 407,731 77,994 485,725 

Net assets released 
from restrictions 345,711 4,176,965 4,522,676 (1.657.975) (l,B64,701) 

Total revenue and 6.091,049 8,617,280 14,708,329 (780.749) 1,704,836 15.632,416 
other support 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Catholic Charities 845,799 200,119 1,045,918 1,045,918 
Catl.olic education 638,704 638,704 638,704 
Communication 106,758 106,758 106,758 
Distributions: 

Education Fund 1,294,057 1,294,057 1,294,057 
Other funds 1,462,293 1,462,293 1,462,293 
}.'ational collections 49,882 793,931 843,813 843,813 
Other 794,680 794,680 794,680 

Pastoral services 786,173 680,.412 1,466,585 1,466,58S 

Tolal program services 3,221,996 4,430,812 7,652,808 7.652,808 

Supporting se .... ices: 
Administration 2,352,585 1,200,039 3,552,624 3,552,624 
Capital expenditures 138,052 138,052 138,052 
Development 382,474 382,474 382,474 
Finance 372,543 372,543 372,543 
Priests' insurance expense 1,167,949 1,}67,949 1,167,949 
Lay employee insurance 

expense (see Note 4) 4,428,862 4,428,862 4,428,B62 
Lai employee benefit! 1,249,432 1,249,432 1,249,432 

TOlal supporting services 4,495,OB6 6,796,850 11,291.936 11,291,936 

Total expenses 7,717.082 11,227,662 18.944,744 18,944,744 

Changes in net assets (1,626,033) (2,610,382) (4,236,415) (780,749) 1,704,836 (3,312,32B) 
Net assets at beginning of year 14.389,448 35.292,534 49,681,982 11,270,157 S 5,531,829 66,483,968 

Net assets at end of year $12,7631415 S 32,682,152 S 45,445,567 S 10,489,408 S 1,704,B36 S5,531,829 S63,171,640 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe fmancial statements. 
; 

I 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows - Modified Cash Basis 
For the Years Ended June 30,2002 and 2001 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Changes in net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

used in operating activities: 

Net depreciation on pooled investments 

Net depreciation on other investments -

priests' health and welfare trusts 

B ad debt expense 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Pledges receivable 

Other assets (net) 

Assets held for affiliates 

.Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Assets due to affiliates 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Amounts drawn from pooled investments for operations 

Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 

Reinvestment of interest and dividends into other investments -

priests' health and welfare trusts 

Deposits into pooled investments 

Amounts drawn from other investments for priests' pension 
payments 

Amounts drawn from pooled investments for health insurance 

Issuance of notes receivable 

Repayments of notes receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net (decrease)/increase in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2002 

$ (12,333,1 02) 

4,107,090 

738,497 

1,208,136 

(9,6M,045) 

(579,330) 

9,283,108 

7,324,308 
(9,283,108) 

(9,143,446) 

10,950,582 

(830,510) 

(192,548) 

(6,051,284) 

367,778 
4,321,825 

(14,363) 

52,116 

8,603.596 

(539,850) 

1.187,328 

$ 647,478 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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2001 

$(3,312,328) 

2,216,854 

763,903 

701,065 

(8,263,706) 

(42,507) 

6,556,119 
6,741,312 

(6.556,119) 

(1,195,407) 

5,718,283 

(1,223,431) 

(221,405) 

(5,910,440) 

336,202 

3,740,836 

(410,045) 

52,718 

2,082,718 

887,311 

300,017 

$ 1,187,328 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Ca"tholic Diocese ofWilnrington,. Inc. (the Diocese) is a not-for-profit corporation having as its 
objects and purposes the promotion of the teachings of Jesus Christ, as taught and set forth by the 
Roman Catholic Church throughout the Diocese in the State of Delaware and the nine (9) Counties of 
the State of Maryland's Eastern Shore and such territory over which the Diocese will have 
jurisdiction as delegated by proper authority of the Universal Roman Catholic Church. 

Basis of Reporting 
The Diocese reports using the modified cash basis of accounting, which differs from the accrual basis 
principally in not recognizing certain pledges and grants and in not establishing accruals for pension 
liabilities and priests' health and welfare trusts. The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with these principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The accompanying financial statements reflect only the operation of the Diocese. Certain other 
operating entities have not been combined in the accompanying statements, the more significant of 
which are as follows: 

Affiliated Parishes and Schools 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Catholic Charities, Inc. 
Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Catholic Press ofWilrnington, Inc. 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Children's Home, Inc. 
Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 
Seton Villa, Inc. 
Siena Hall, Inc. 

The Diocese acts as a fiduciary for these entities by investing funds in its pooled investment and cash 
management accounts on behalf of these entities. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset classifications 
follows: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations 
and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors 
such as by contract or board designation. 

- 7 -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have 
not been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. TeJ:I1porarily restricted net assets are primarily restricted for youth 
education and related activities, education of men for the priesthood, and the upkeep of 
specific facilities. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

Contributions 
Noncash contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash and 
other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the contributions 
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions 
which are received and expended within the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments ,vith an original maturity ofthree 
months or less. The Diocese investments in cash and cash equivalents are interest bearing. At times 
these amounts may exceed federally insured limits . 

. Pooled Investments 
Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of activities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and 
custodial costs. . 

The Diocese manages an investment pool for its investments and those of its affiliated organizations. 
The investment pool is held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The pool is invested in a 
combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in 
the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Pledges Receivable 
Except for pledges made to the Annual Catholic Appeal and grants made by the Catholic Diocese 
Foundation, Inc., which are accounted for on a cash basis, unconditional promises to give are reported 
at fair value as pledges receivable and contributions in the period the promise is received. All pledges 
are due in one to five years. The Diocese is not the recipient of any conditional pledges. 

- 8 -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Real Estate and Equipment 
Real estate consists of buildings and the related land. All real estate acquisitions are capitalized at 
cost, when purchased, or at fair value at date of gift, when donated. Equipment is expensed at the time 
of purchase. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SFAS 93), "Recognition of Depreciation by 
Not-for-Profit Organizations," requires not-for-profit organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost 
of using up the future benefits of their long-lived tangible assets. The Diocese has not adopted 
SFAS 93. 

Assets Held forlDue to Affiliates 
These assets are owned by the affiliated corporations and invested for the affiliates by the Diocese in 
the pooled investments. 

2. Pooled Investments 

The composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixedmcome 

Domestic equity 
International equity 

Total pooled investments 

2002 

$ 1,894,581 
11,411,771 
20,773,266 

6,138,434 

$40,218,052 

2001 

$ 2,451,555 
14,487,903 
28,537,920 

7,219,545 

$52,696,923 

The composition of other investments - priests' health and welfare trusts at June 30, 2002 and 2001 
was as follows: -

2002 2001 

Cash and cash equivalents $ (42,917) $ (106,516) 

Fixed-incorre 2,723,238 2,616,674 

Domestic equity 3,376,350 4,479,072 

Total other investments $6,056,671 $6,989,230 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 2002 
and 2001. 

-9-
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2002 and 2001 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following: 

Interest and dividends 

Net (loss) appreciation 

Pooled investment (loss) income 

2002 

$ 830,510 

(4,107,090) 

$(3,276,580) 

2001 

$ 1,223,431 

(i,216,854) 

$ (993,423) 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amounts of $309,066 and 
$344,184 for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Other investment income - priests' health and welfare trusts for the years ended June 30,2002 and 
2001 consisted of the following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net (loss) appreciation 

Other investment (loss) income 

3. Notes Receivable 

~otes receivable at June 30, 2002 and 2001 were as follows: 

Korean Catholic Community - interest payable at 2.8% in monthly 
installments of $948.95 over 15 years, starting June 2000 

St. Mark's High School (roof repairs) - payable in annual· 
installments of $40,000 the first year and $45,000 the 

next eight years beginning December 30, 1997, 
non-interest bearing 

St.Hedwig 

Other 

Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 

Total notes receivable 

- 10 -

2002 

$ 192,548 
(738,497) 

$(545,949) 

2001 

$ 221,405 
(763,903) 

$(542,498) 

2002 2001 

$104,666 

180,000 
53,430 

800 . 
369,729 

$ 708,625 

$111,333 

225,000 

53,430 

356,615 

$ 746,378 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

4. Capital Campaign 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, the Diocese initiated a Capital Campaign. Pledges 
recdved as part of the Capital Clilmpaign are shared by the Diocese and individual parishes based on a 
predetermined formula. Pledges are receivable over a period of up to five years. Pledges receivable 
over the next five years are as follows: 

2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Total 

Discount for net present value 
Allowance for uncollectible pledges 

Total Capital Campaign pledges receivable 

Liability to parishes at June 30,2002, included in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses 

Diocese pledge revenue for the year 
ended June 30, 2002 

The Capital Campaign will continue in future periods. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

$ 7,351,713 
6,754,850 
3,203,563 
1,550,527 

313,168 
600 

19,174,421 

(1,270,647) 
0,909,201) 

$15,994,573 

$13,035,824 

$ 5,666,921 

Certain members of the Diocese's board are also board members of certain affiliated corporations. 

The Diocese includes on its balance sheet assets held for/due to affiliated corporations which are 
reported in restricted net assets. These assets are owned by the affiliated corporations and are 
included in the financial statements of the Diocese to portray the fiduciary relationship on these 
assets. 

The Diocese received assessments from its parishes in the amount of S3,171,993 and $2,902,869 for 
the years ended June 30, 2002 and 200 I, respectively, and from Catholic Cemeteries in the amount of 
$120,000 and $114,000, respectively. 

During 2002 and 2001, the Catholic Diocese'Foundation awarded the Diocese $175,000 and 
$185,110, respectively. Because the Diocese reports on a modified cash basis, only the cash amounts 
received of $25,000 and $30,298, respectively, from the Catholic Diocese Foundation were included 
on the statements of activities of the Diocese. 

- 11 -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

During 2002 and 200 I, St. Mark's contributed $144,578 and $174,552, respectively, to funds held 
and administered by the Diocese and Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 

The Diocese disburses funds on behalf of Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. (CYO) for wages, 
payroll taxes and health benefits: During the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001, the Diocese 
disbursed a total of $237,220 and $217,160, respectively, on behalf of CYO. Of these balances, 
amounts still due to the Diocese of approximately $10,715 and $15,407, respectively, are included ir. 
other assets for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001. 

The Diocese disburses funds on behalf of the Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. (Press) for wages, 
payroll taxes, health benefits and other miscellaneous expenses. During the years ended June 30, 200:~ 
and 2001, the Diocese disbursed a total of$332,289and $305,567, respectively, on behalf of Press. or 
these balances, amounts still due to the Diocese of approximately $55,000 and $53,000, respectively, 
are included in other assets for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001. 

The Diocese disburses funds on behalf of S1. Thomas More Academy (St. Thomas) for wages, payroll 
taxes and health benefits. During the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, the Diocese disbursed a 
total of$907,333 and $815,939,respectively, on behalf of St. Thomas. Of these balances, amounts 
still due to the Diocese of approximately S81,000 and $72,000, respectively, are included in other 
assets for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001. 

The Diocese provided funding to related organizations. The more significant funding provided v,'as as 
fonows: 

. 2002 2001 

Press $ 467,701 $425,183 

Catholic Charities, Inc. 923,416 845,799 
S1. ;\1ark's High School 1,207,197 776,940 
CYO 129,900 123,504 

St. Thomas 508,270 466,880 

The Diocese provides administrative services for the Catholic Diocese Foundation, CYO, the Press, 
and St. Thomas. The Catholic Diocese Foundation was invoiced $10,623 and $10,207 for these 
services for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Diocese absorbed the cost of 
the services to CYO, the Press, and St. Thomas since the amounts are not significant. 

The Diocese pays all claims ahd other ex.penses related to their self-insurance plan, which 
conunenced on July 1, 1998. The self-insurance plan covers health insurance, workers' compensation 
and automobile insurance, and property and liability insurance. Each affiliated corporation pays the 
Diocese a premium for their portion of the plan claims and expenses. In 2002 and 2001, the Diocese 
received approximately $5,000,000 and $3,800,000, res'pectively, in premium revenue from affiliated 
corporations. These premiums are invested in an insurance reserve fund, and the Diocese pays all 
claims out of this fund. In 2002 and 2001, the Diocese paid approximately $5,000,000 and 
$4,200,000, respectively, in actual claims. Included in accounts payable and accrued expenses is an 
amount for estimated incurred but not reported claims. 

- 12-
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

The Diocese also sponsors a health and welfare trust for priests, which became self-insured effective 
January 1, 2001. Each affiliated corporation pays the Diocese a premium for their portion of the 
plan's claims and expenses. The Diocese received approximately $1,200,000 and $1,100,000 in 
pr~mium revenues from affiliated corporations in the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001, 
respectfully .. 

The Diocese provides life insurance and long-term disability for all full-time employees of the 
Diocese, parishes, and certain affiliated corporations, at no cost to those entities since these amounts 
were not significant. The Diocese also provides pension for all full-time employees ofthe Diocese, 
parishes and certain affiliated corporations. Approximately $75,000 and $59,300 of pension costs 
were charged to other entities for the years ended JlU1e 30,2002 and 2001, respectively: 

The Diocese charged rental fees of $2, 136 and $2,052 for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 200 1, 
respectively, to the Catholic Diocese Foundation and rental fees of $22,932 and $22,050 for the years 
ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively, to the Press. A diocesan-owned building was used by 
CYO, without charge, since the value was not significant. 

6. Pension Plans 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) covering all full-time 
lay employees of the Diocese, parishes, and affiliated corporations; except Catholic Charities, which 
has a separate plan. The Plan benefits are based on a monthly pension equal to 1% of the high five­
year average compensation for each year of service. The following table sets forth the Plan's status 
determined using the measurement dates of January 1, 2002 and 2001: 

Accumulated benefit obligation, including vested 
benefits 0[$15,301,980 and 5:13,485,717 

Plan assets at fair value 

2002 

$15,862,621 
9,201,254 

2001 

$ 13,987,l31 
9,550,328 

The more significant actuarial assumptions utilized as of each valuation date are as follows: 

Cost method 
Interest rate 
Discount rate 
Mortality 
Salary progression 

Aggregate 
7.5% per annum 
7.5% per annum 
1984 Uniform Premium Table 
4.0% per annum 

For the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, $1,000,000 and $750,000, respectively, was funded into 
the Plan and included as an expense in the statement of activities. 

The fair value of Plan assets as ofJlU1e 30. 2002 and 2001 was $8,912,442 and $9,518,550, 
respectively. The Plan assets are invested'in Domestic Equity and Domestic Bonds. 

-13 -

DOW 03098 



Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

The Diocese has also established a Revocable Priests Retirement and Welfare Trust to cover the 
health and retirement cost of the clergy of the Diocese. As of June 30, 2002 and 2001 the fund assets 
totaled $6,056,671 and $6,989,230, respectively. This balance is included within other investments on 
th~ balance sheet. 

7. Income Taxes 

The Diocese is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal 
taxation under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

8. Commitments and Contingencies 

The Diocese will support the operations of other related entities to the extent that those entities are not 
fmancially self-sufficient. 

In addition, the Diocese will support the operations of S1. Thomas during the first several school years 
of operation when enrollment levels and corresponding tuition is not expected to cover operating 
expenses and planned capital expenditures. It is estimated that approximately $3.5 to $4.5 million of 
Diocesan support will be required for St. Thomas for the years 1998 through 2004. As described in 
Note 5, during 2002 and 2001, approximately $508,000 and 5467,000, respectively, was provided to 
S1. Thomas by the Diocese in the form of contributions. It is expected that further support will be 
provided by loans or additional contributions from the Diocese. 

The Diocese is subject to lawsuits and claims with respect to various matters that arise out of the 
normal course of its operations. In the opinion of the Diocese's internal and external counset, 
considerable uncertainty exists with respect to the outcome of these matters. An estimate of the 
expected liability for these matters is included in the balance sheet at June 30, 2002. Actual results 
could differ from this estimate. Management does not anticipate that the ultimate liabilities from 
these matters will have a material adverse effect on the financial position or liquidity of the Diocese. 

- 14-

DOW 03099 



Catholic Diocese of 
Wilmington, Inc. 
Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

DOW 03100 



Catholic Diocese of WilmingtonJ Inc. 
Table of Contents 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Report of Independent Accountants 

Financial Statements: 
Balance ~heets - Modified Cash Basis 

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets - :\1odified Cash Basi~ 

Statements of Cash Flows - Modified Cash Basis 

Notes to Financial Statements 

Page(s) 

2-3 

4-5 

6 

7 - 14 

DOW 03101 



Report ofIndependent Accountants 

To the Audit Committee 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, fnc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

PricewaterhouseCoopers UP 
-Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103·7042 
Telephone (267) 33 a 3 000 

, Facsimile (267i 330 3300 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets - modified cash basis of the Catholic Diocese of 
Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) as of June 30,2000 and 1999, and the related statements of activities 
and changes in net assets and cash flows - modified cash basis for the years then ended, These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Diocese's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note 1, these financial statements were prepared on the modified cash basis, which is a 
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

The Diocese has not adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SFAS 93), 
"Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations," which requires not-for-profit 
organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future economic benefits oftheir long­
lived tangible assets. Also, equipment is expensed at the time of purchase-that, in our opinion, should 
be capitalized in order to conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The effects of not complying with SF AS 93 and of not capitalizing equipment are not 
reasonably determinable. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of not recognizing depreciation expense of long-lived tangible 
assets and of not capitalizing equipment as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position ofthe Diocese 
as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then 
ended, on the basis of accounting described in Note 1. 

October 6, 2000 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Balance Sheet - MOdified Cash Basis 
June 3D, 2000 and 1999 

2000 :<)99 

Unrestricted 

Assets General Designated Total Restricted Total . ;'otal 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 92.885 $ 37.086 .$ 129,971 $ 170,046 $ 300,017 $ 586.544 

Pooled investments 13,383,292 27,)08,575 40,691,867 16,468,215 57.160.082 5~548,280 

Other investm$!nts - priests' health 

and welfare trusts 7,946,873 7.946.873 7.946.873 U80.815 

Other assets 446,603 446.603 55.880 502.483 764.629 

Pledges receivable 107,845 107,845 ; 16,622 

Notes receivable, net of allowance 389,051 389.05] 389.051 968.120 

Real estate 1,164,680 l,I64,680 [,164.680 Ll64,680 
Assets held for affiliates 86,904,482 86,904,482 79705,147 

Total assets $15,476,511 $35.292,534 .$ 50, 769,045 S 1 03,706,468 $154,475,513 $ 144.034,83i 

Liabilities and ~et Assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1.087.063 1.087,063 1,087,063 ':,[8,514 

Assets due to affiliates 86,904,482 86,904.482 79. "05,147 -----
Total liabilities 1,087.063 1,087,063 86,904,482 87,991,545 80,123,661 -----

Net assets: 

L'nrestricted·. general !4,389,448 14,389,448 14,389,448 14, :39,087 

Unrestricted - designated 35,292,534 35,292,534 35,292,534 32. 44.60[ 

Temporarily restricted ]1,270,157 11,270.157 10. '15.659 
Permanently restricted 5.531,&29 5,531,829 5 .. "1,829 -----

Total net assets 14,389,448 35,292,534 49.681,982 [6.801,986 66,483,96R (;3.~ [ 1.176 ----
Total liabilities and net assets $15.47651 J $35,292,534 $ 50, 769,045 $103,706,468 $ J 54,475.513 $ I 44,0 ~4.837 ----

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Balance Sheet - Modified Cash Basis 
June 30,1999 

1999 

Unrestricted 

Assets General Designated Total Restricted Total 

Cash and cash equivalents .$ 437,094 $ 24,086 $ 461,180 S 125,364 $ 586.544 

Pooled investments 12,628,904 23,886,580 36.515,484 16,032,796 52,548,280 

Other invest~ents - priests' health 

and welfare truSts 8.180,815 8.180,815 8.180.815 

Other assets 711,923 711,913 52,706 764,629 

Pledges receivable 116.622 116.622 

Notes receivable, net of allowance )15.000 653,120 968,120 968,120 

Real estate 1.164.680 1, 164,680 1.164.680 

Assets heid for affiliates 79,705,147 79.705.147 

Total assets $15,257,601 $32,744,601 $ 48,002,202 $ 96,032,635 $144,034,837 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 618,514 618,514 618.514 

Assets due to affiliates 79,705,147 79,705.147 

Total liabilities 618,514 618,514 79,705,)47 80,323,661 

Net assets: 

Unrestricted· general 14,639.087 14,639,087 14,639.087 

Unrestricted - designated 32,744,601 32,744,601 32,744.60) 

Temporarily restricted 10,795,659 10.795,659 

Permal1ently restricted 5,531,829 5,5] 1,829 

Total net assets 14,639,087 32,744,601 47,383,688 16,327,488 63,711,176 

Total liabilities 'and net assets $15,257,601 532,744,601 $48,002,202 $ 96,032,635 $ 144,034.837 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets - Modified Cash Basis 
For the Year Ended June 30,2000 

l: n restricted Temporarily Permanently 
General Designated Total Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues and other support: 
Assessments S 2.833,819 $ 2.833.819 $ 2.833.819 
Annual appeal 2,627.875 2.627.875 2.627.875 
Pooled investment income 1,657,066 .t 3.060,851 4.717,917 $ 1.740.536 6.458.453 
Other investment income-

priests' health and welfare trusts 263,177 263,177 263.177 
Collections 44,937 63,724 108,661 1,070,772 1.179.433 
Contributions 99,855 570,201 670,056 3Q3.652 973,708 
CDFGrant 44.841 20,000 64.841 64.841 
Priests' insurance premiums 1,061,696 1,061,696 1.061,696 
Lay employee insurance 

premiums (see Note 4) 3.634,804 3.634,804 3,634.804 
Other 184,506 154,900 339,406 28,026 367,432 

Net assets released from restrictions 210;840 2,457,648 2.668,488 (2,668,488) 

Total revenue and other support 7,703,739 1 1,287,001 18,9'90,740 474,498 19,465,238 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Catholic Charities 998,900 194,533 U93,433 1,193.433 
Catholi c education 651,997 651,997 651,997 
Conununication 82,131 82,131 82.131 
Distributions: 

Education Fund 961,004 961,004 96),004 
Other funds 293,241 293,241 293,24 ) 
National collectiDns 44.937 832,965 877,902 877,902 
Other 946,282 946.282 946.282 

Pas toral s::rvices 761,313 960,764 1.722.077 1,722.077 

Total program services 3,485,560 3,242,507 6,728,067 6,728,067 

Supporting services: 
Administration 2,472,183 1,181,620 3,653,803 3,653,803 
Capital expenditures 64.259 64,259 64,259 
Development 347,445 39,544 386,989 386,989 
Finance 358,103 358,103 358.103 
Priests' insurance expense 887,173 887.173 887.173 
Lay employee insurance 

expense (see Note 4) 3,388,224 3.388.224 3,388,224 
Lay employee benefits 1,225,828 1,225,828 1,225,828 

Totar supporting services 4,467,818 5,49.6,561 9,964,379 9,964,379 

Total expenses 7,953,378 8,739,068 16,692,446 16,692,446 

ChaD.ges in net assets (249,639) 2,547,933 2,298,294 474,498 2,772,792 
Net assets arbeginning of year 14,639,087 32,744,601 47,383,688 10,795,659 $5,531,829 63,711,176 

Net assets at end of year S 14,389,448 S35,292,534 S49,681,982 $ Il,270,157 $5.531,829 S66,4&3.968 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets - Modified Cash Basis 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Unrestdcted Temporarily Permanently 
General Designated Total Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues and other support: 
Assessments $ 2.668.324 $ 2.668.324 $ 2.068.324 
Annua[ appeal 2584,688 2.584.688 2584.688 
Pooled investment income 99[,294 $ 1.624,729 2.616.023 $ 1.260,[79 3.876.202 
Other investment income -

priests' health and welfare trusts 1.149,458 1,149,458 1.149,458 
Collections 41,795 [20,766 162.561 986.18 [ 1.148,742 
Contributions ' 332,125 445,127 777,252 205,299 $ 3,061 985.612 
CDFGrant 7,560 25.000 32.560 32.560 
Priests' insurance premiums 959.717 959,717 959.717 
Lay employee insurance 

premiums (see Note 4) 3.323,514 3,323,514 3.323.514 
Other 106,793 164,129 270,922 21.340 292,262 

Net assets released from restrictions 585.758 1,180,708 1,766,466 (1,766,466) 

Total revenue and other support 7,318,337 8,993.148 16,311 ,485 706,533 3,061 17,021.079 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Catholic Charities 894,653 176.567 1,071,220 1,071.220 
Catholic education 541,578 541,578 541.578 
Communication 72,349 72,349 72,349 
Distributions: 

Education Fund 745,463 745,463 745,463 
Other funds 592,227 592,227 592,227 
\a~ional collections 42,714 717,676 760.390 760.390 
Other 1,108.482 '1,108,482 J.I08,482 

Pastoral services 809,700 311,415 1,121,115 1,121.l15 

Total program services 3,469,476 2,543,348 6,012,824 6,012.824 

Supporting services: 
Administration 2,085,792 531,939 2,617,731 ,2,617.731 
Capital expenditures 82,616 82,616 82.616 
Development 363.532 28.597 392,129 392.129 
Finance 372,746 372,746 3i2.746 
Priesl~' insurance expense 1.013.118 1,013,118 1,0\3,118 
Lay employee insurance 

expense (see Note 4) 2,899.716 2,899.716 2.899.716 
Lay employee benefits 1,219.498 1,219.498 1,219.498 

Total supporting services 4,124,184 4,473,370 8,597,554 8.597,554 

Total expenses 7,593,660 7,016,718 14,610,378 14,610.378 

Cha:lges in net assets (275,323) 1.976,43Q 1,701.107 706,533 3.061 2.410,701 
Net assets at beginning of year [4,914,410 30,768,171 45,682.581 10,089,126 5,528,768 61.300,475 

Net assets at end of year $14,639,087 $32,744,601 $47,383,688 $ 10,795,659 $5.531,829 $63.711,176 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows ~ Modified Cash Basis 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Changes in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

used in operating activities: 
Net forgiveness of notes receivable 
Net appreciation on pooled investments 
Net appreciation on other investments-

priests' health and welfare trusts 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Pledges receivable 
Other assets 
Assets held for affiliates 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Assets due to affiliates 
Loss on sale of real estate 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities:' 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments for operations 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into other investments -

priests' health and welfare trusts 
Deposits into pooled investments 
Amounts drawn from other investments for priests' pension 

payments 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments for health insurance 
Proceeds from sale of real estate 
Issuance of notes receivable 
Repayments of notes receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net (decrease)!increase in cash 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2000 

$2,772,792 

653,120 
(5,051,747) 

(42,220) 

8,777 
262,146 

(7,199,335) 
468,549 

7.199,335 

(928,583) 

2,373,435 
(1,406,706) 

(220,957) 
(3,361,221 ) 

497,121 
2,834,435 

(120,000) 
45,949 

642,056 

(286,527) 
586,544 

$ 300,017 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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1999 

$2,410,701 

(2,580,744) 

(954,050) 

412,293 
(502,657) 

1,049,1 04 
488,217 

(1,049,] 04) 
18,184 

(708.056) 

4,030,100 
(1,295,458) 

(I 95,408) 
(4,323,017) 

365,420 
2,1 37,485 

61,869 

56,480 

837,471 

129,415 
457,129 

$ 586,544 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 3D, 2000 and 1999 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations , 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) is a 11ot-for-profit corporation having as its 
objects and purposes the promotion of the teachings of Jesus Christ, as taught and set forth by the 
Roman Catholic Church throughout the Diocese in the State of Delaware and the nine (9) Counties of 
the State of Maryland's Eastern Shore and such territory over which the Diocese will have 
jurisdiction as delegated by proper authority of the Universal Roman Cat'IlOlic Church. Approximately 
35% and 30% of the revenue for the Diocese was generated through income on investments for the 
years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Basis of Reporting 
The Diocese reports using the modified cash basis of accounting, which differs from the accrual basis 
principally in not recognizing certain pledges and grants and in not establishing accruals for pension 
liabilities and priests' health and welfare trusts. The preparation of financial statements in conformity 
with these principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The accompanying financial statements reflect only the operation of the Diocese. Certain other 
operating entities have not been combined in the accompanying statements, the more significant of 
which are as follows: 

Affiliated Parishes and Schools 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Catholic Charities, Inc. 
Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Children's Home, Inc. 
Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 
Seton Villa, Inc. 
Siena Hall, Jnc. 

The Diocese acts as a fiduciary for these entities by investing funds in its pooled investment and cash 
management accounts on behalf of these entities. 

- 7 -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 117, Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit Organizations. Resources are reported 
for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor­
imposed restrictions. A description ofthe three net asset classifications follows: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations 
and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors 
such as by contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have 
not been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. Temporarily restricted net assets are primarily restricted for youth 
education and related activities, education of men for the priesthood, and the upkeep of 
specific facilities. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

Contributions 
Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made." Noncash 
contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash and other nOL­
capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the contributions are received 
with donor stipulations that .limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restrictIon expires, that 
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement 
of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions, which are received 
and expended within the same fiscal year, are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less. The Diocese investments in cash and cash equivalents are interest bearing. At times 
these amounts may exceed federally insured limits. 

Pooled Investments 
Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of activities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and 
custodial costs. 

The Diocese manages an investment pool for its investments and those of its affiliated organization.>. 
The investment pool is held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The pool is invested in a 
combination offixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. 

- 8 -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty' related to changes in 
the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Pledges Receivable 
Except for pledges mage to the Annual.Catholic Appeal and grants made by the Catholic Diocese 
Foundation, Inc., which are accounted for on a cash basis, unconditio\lal promises to give are reported 
at fair value as pledges receivable and contributions in the period the promise is received. All pledges 
are due in one to five years. The Diocese is not the recipient of any conditional pledges. 

Real Estate and Equipment 
Real estate consists of buildings and the related land. All real estate acquisitions are capitalized at 
cost, when purchased, or at fair value at date of gift, when donated. Equipment is expensed at the time 
of purchase. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SF AS 93), "Recognition of Depreciation by 
Not-far-Profit Organizations," requires not-for-profit organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost 
of using up the future benefits of their long-lived tangible assets. The Diocese has not adopted 
SFAS 93. 

Assets Held forillue to Affiliates 
These assets are owned by the affiliated corporations and invested for the affiliates by the Diocese in 
the pooled investments. 

2. Pooled Investments 

The Diocese invests in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. The 
composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Fixed income 
Domestic equity 

International equity 

Total pooled investments 

- 9-

2000 

$ 2,396,718 

17,471,878 
29,873,646 

7,417,840 

$57,160,082 

1999 

$ 1,691,336 
14,700,454 
30,136,018 

6,020,472 

$ 52,548,280 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

The composition of other investments - priests' health and welfare trusts at June 30, 2000 and 1999 
was as follows: 

2000 1999 

Cash and cash equivalents $ (98,776) $ 5,541 
Fixed income 2,524,549 2.568.039 
Domestic equity 5,52 LlOO 5,607.235 

Total other investments $7,946,873 $ 8, 180,815 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 2000 
and 1999., 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 consisted ofthe following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net appreciation 

Pooled investment income 

2000 1999 

S 1,406,706 $1,295,458 
5,051,747 2,580,744 

$6,458,453 $3,876,202 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amounts of $377,536 and 
$265,650 for the years ended June 30,2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Other investment income - priests' health and welfare trusts for the years ended June 30,2000 and 
1999 consisted of the following: 

Interest and dividends 

Net appreciation 

Other investment income 

- 10-

2000 

$220,957 

42.220 

$263,177 

1999 

$ 195,408 

954,050 

$1,149,458 
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

3. Notes Receivable 

Notes receivabLe at June 30, 2000 and 1999 were as foHows: 

Korean Catholic Community - interest payable at 2.8% in monthly 
installments of$948.95 over 15 years, starting June 2000 

2000 1999 

$119,051 ,-
St. Mark's High School (roofrepairs) - payabLe in annual 

installments of $40,000 the first year and $45,000 the 
next eight years beginning December 30, 1997, 
non-interest bearing 270,000 $ 315,000 

St. Anthony of Padua (construct Padua Academy) -
payable in annual instaIIments of $25,000 due 
June 30, non-interest bearing 

Diocesan guaranteed bank loan to a seminarian 

Total notes receivable 

Allowance for uncollectible receivables 

'Total notes receivable, net 

389,05] 

$389,051 

1,636,000 

26,020 

1,977,020 

(1,008,900) 

$ 968,120 

During the year ended June 30,2000, $1,662,020 of notes receivable were forgiven. Of this balance, 
$1,008,900 had been reserved. . 

4. Related Party Transactions 

Certain members of the Diocese's board are also board members of certain affiliated corporations. 

The Diocese includes on its balance sheet assets held for/due to affiliated corporations which are 
reported as restricted net assets. These assets are owned by the affiliated corporations and are 
included in the financial statements of the Diocese to portray the fiduciary relationship on these 
assets. 

The Diocese received assessments from its parishes in the amount of$2,833,819 and $2,668,324 for 
the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively, and from Catholic Cemeteries in the amount of 
$103,617 and $71,250, respectively. 

During 2000 and 1999, the Catholic Diocese Foundation awarded the Diocese $218,365 and 
$319,476, respectively. Because the Diocese reports on a modified cash basis, only the cash amounts 
received of $64,841 and $32,560, respectively, from the Catholic Diocese Foundation were included 
on the statements of activities of the Diocese. 

During 2000 and 1999, St. Mark's contributed $205,854 and $229, I 00, respectively, to funds held 
and administered by the Diocese and Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 

- II -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

The Diocese disburses funds on behalf of Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. (CYO) for wages, 
payroll taxes and health benefits. During the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, the Diocese 
disbursed a total of $132,889 and S 132,521, respectively, on behalf ofCYO. Of these balances, 
amounts still due to the Diocese of approximately $6,700 and $8,000, respectively, are included in 
other assets for the years ended June 30,2000 and 1999. 

The Diocese disburses funds on behalf of the Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. (Press) for wages, 
payroll taxes, health benefits and other miscellaneous expenses. During the years ended June 30, 2000 
and .1999, the Diocese disbursed a total of $297,630 and $241,253, respectively, on behalf of Press. 
Of these balances, amounts still due to the Diocese of approximately $47,000 and $49,000, 
respectively, are included in other assets for the years ended June 30,2000 and 1999. 

The Diocese disburses funds on behalf of St. Thomas More Academy CSt. Thomas) for wages, payroll 
taxes and health benefits. During the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, the Diocese disbursed a 
total of $571,88 1 and $370,335, respectively, on behalf of St. Thomas. Of these balances, amounts 
still due to the Diocese of approximately $59,000 and $39,000, respectively, are included in other 
assets for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999. 

The Diocese provided funding to related organizations. The more significant funding provided was as 
follow,S: . 

2000 1999 

Press 5420,617 $390,276 
Catholic Charities, Inc. 998,900 940,000 
St. Mark's High School 726,440 785,263 
eyO 60,000 28,941 
St. Thomas 693,500 797,482 

The Diocese provides administrative services for the Catholic Diocese Foundation, CYO, the Press, 
and St. Thomas. The Catholic Diocese Foundation was invoiced $9,671 and $11,776 for these 
services for the years ended June 30,2000 and 1999, respectively. The Diocese absorbed the cost of 
the services to CYO, the Press, and St. Thomas since the amounts are not significant. 

Tlie Diocese pays all claims and other expenses related to their self-insurance plan, which 
commenced on July 1, 1998. The self-insurance plan covers health insurance, workers' compensation 
and automobile insurance, and property and liability insurance. Each affiliated corporation pays the 
Diocese a premium for their portion of the plan claims and expenses. In 2000 and 1999, the Diocese 
received approximately $3,600,000 and $3,300,000, respectively, in premium revenue from affiliated 
corporations. These premiums are invested in an insurance reserve fund, and the Diocese'pays all 
claims out of this fund. In 2000 and 1999, the Diocese paid approximately $3,400,000 and 
$2,900,000, respectively, in actual claims. Included in accounts payable and accrued expenses is an 
amount for estimated incurred but not reported ~laims. 

The Diocese also sponsors a health and welfare trust for priests, which became self-insured effective 
January 1,2000. Each affiliated corporation pays the Diocese a premium for their portion of the 
plan's claims and expenses. In 2000 and 1999, the Diocese received approximately $1,100,000 and 
$ I ,000,000, respectively, in premium revenues from affiliated corporations. 

- 12 -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

The Diocese provides life insurance and long-term disability for alJ full-time employees ofthe 
Diocese, parishes, and certain affiliated corporations, at no cost to those entities since these amounts 
were not significant. The Diocese also provides pension for all full-time employees of the Diocese. 
parishes and certain affiliated corporations. Approximately $49,700 and $44,300 of pension costs 
were charged to other entities for the years ended June 3D, 2000 and \999, respectively. 

The Diocese charged rental fees of $1,956 and $1,872 for the years ended June 30,2000 and 1999, 
respectively, to the Catholic Diocese Foundation and rental fees of$20,988 and $21,866 for the years 
ended June 30,2000 and 1999, respectively, to the Press. A diocesan-owned building was used by 
CYO, without charge, since the value was not significant. 

S. Pension Plans 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) covering all full-time 
lay employees ofthe Diocese, parishes, and affiliated corporations, except Catholic Charities, which 
has a separate plan. The Plan benefits are based on a monthly pension equal to 1% of the high five 
year average compensation for each year of service. The following table sets forth the Plan's status 
determined using the measurement dates of January 1,2000 and 1999: 

2000 1999 
Accumulated benefit obligation, including vested 

benefits of $11,963,304 and $10,468,979 
Plan assets at fair value 

$ 12,377,850 
10,014,280 

$10,802,635 
8,493,857 

The more significant actuarial assumptions utilized as of each valuation date are as follows: 

Cost method 
Interest rate 
Mortality 
Salary progression 

Aggregate 
7.5% per annum 
1984 Uniform Premium Table 
4.0% per annum 

For the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, $1,075,000 and $1,000,000, respectively, was funded 
into the Plan and included in the statement of activities. 

The fair value of Plan assets as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 was $10,036,794 and $9,841,945, 
respectively. 

The Diocese has also established a Revocable Priests Retirement and Welfare Trust to cover the 
health and retirement cost of the clergy of the Diocese. As of June 30,2000 and 1999 the fund assets 
totaled $7,946,873 and $8,180,815, respectively. This balance is included within other investments on 
the balance sheet. 

~ 13 -
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Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

6. Income Taxes 

The Diocese is a not-far-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal 
taxation under Section 50 I (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

7. Commitments and Contingencies 

The Diocese guaranteed a loan of St. Thomas, which had an outstanding balance of $263,500 at 
June 30, 1999. This loan was paid in full in prior to June 30,2000. 

In addition, the Diocese will support the operations of St. Thomas during the first several school years 
of operation when enrollment levels and corresponding tuition is not expected to cover operating 
expenses and planned capital expenditures. It is estimated that approximately $3.5 to $4.5 million of 
Diocesan support will be required for St. Thomas for the years 2000 through 2004. During 2000 and 
1999, approximately $694,000 and $797,000, respectively, was provided to St. Thomas by the 
Diocese in the form of contributions. It is expected that further support wilJ be provided by loans or 
additional contributions from the Diocese. 

- 14-
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Report of Independent Accountants 

To the Audit Committee 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
·Wilmington, Delaware 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
i· 2400 Eleven Penn Center 

I
i Philadelphia PA 19103-2962 

Telephone (215) 963 80CO 
Facsimile (215) 963 8700 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets - modified cash basis of the Catholic Diocese of 
Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and the related statements of activities 
and cash flows - modified cash basis for the years then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Diocese's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, which standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit aiso includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion. 

As described in Note 1, these financial statements \V'ere prepared on the modified cash basis, which 
is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles. 

The Diocese has not adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SF AS 93), 
"Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations," \vhich requires not-for-profit 
organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future economic benefits of their 
long-lived tangible assets. The effect of not complying with SF AS 93 is not reasonably 
determinable. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of not recognizing depreciation expense of long-lived tangible 
assets as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Diocese as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and 
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, on the ba~is of reporting 
described in Note 1. 

September 21, 1998 
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CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF WILMINGTON, INC. 

ASSETS 

Cash 
Pooled investments 
Other investments 
Other assets 
Pledges receivable 
Notes receivable, net of allowance 
Real estate 
Assets held for affiliates 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Assets due to affiliates 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 
Unrestricted - designated 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

Balance Sheets - Modified Cash Basis 
June 30, 1998 and 1997 

1998 
Unrestricted 

Board 
General Designated Total Restricted 

$ 391,568 $ 19,086 $ 410,654 $ 46,475 
12,823,580 22,700,208 35,523,788 14,992,859 

7,396,777 7,396,777 
212,327 212,327 49,645 

528,915 
372,500 652,100 1,024,600 

1,244,732 1,244,732 
80,754,251 

~ 15,044,707 $ 30,768,171 :t45,812,878_ 1_9§,372,1 '!§ 

130,297 130,297 

130,297. 
~----

130,29~ 

14,914,410 14,914,410 
30,768,171 30,768,171 

14,914,410 30,768,171 45,682,581 

$ 15,044,707 $ 30,768,171 $ 45,812.878 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 

80,754,251 

80,754,2QL 

10,089,126 
5,528,768 

15,617,894 

$ 96,372,145 

1 
1997 

Total Total 

$ 457,129 $ 574,735 
50,516,647 44,831,270 

7,396,777 6,634,226 
261,972 661,994 
528,915 340,514 

1,024,600 706,600 
1,244,732 1,242,732 

80,754,251 66,94~t~?_!?., 

$ 142,185,023 $ 121,935,456 

130,297 217,788 
80,754,251 66,943,385 

80,881,548 67,161,173 

14,914,410 14,697,035 
30,768,171 26,709,423 
10,089,126 7,840,866 

5,528,768 5,526,959 

61,300,475 54,774,,~~1_ 

$ 142,185,023 $ 121,935,456 
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Revenues and other support 
Assessments 
Annual appeal 
Pooled investment income 
Other irwostmenl income 
Collections 
Contributions 
COr- Granl 
Other 

TOlal revenue 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Catholic Charities 
Christian Formalion 
Communication 
Distributions: 

Education Fund 
Other lunds 
Nalional collections 
Other 

Pastoral Concerns 

Total program services 

Supporting services: 
Administralion 
Capital expenditures 
Developmenl 
Finance 
lay employee benefits 

TOlal supporting services 

Total expenses 

Excess/(deliciency) 01 revenue over expenses 

Ne! assels released Irom reslriclions 

Changes in net assets 

Nel assels al beginning of year 

Nel asselS al end ot year 

CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF WILMINGTON, INC. 

Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis 
for the year ended June 30, 1998 

Unreslricled 
Board---ooOonor Temporarily 

_Ge~~ Designated _ Rp.lmed 00. Tolal Reslricled __ 

$ 2,536,150 $ 2,536,150 
2,164.298 2,164,298 
2,082,075 $ 3,525,938 5,608,013 $ 2,388.453 

t,107,030 1,107,030 
38,860 62,759 101,619 697,508 
73,989 413,359 487,348 1,581,009 

158,225 25,000 178,225 400,000 
167,772 868,185 -1.035,957 7,898 

7,216~~ 6,00:'.2
0

11 13,218,640 5,274,948 

760,474 $ 166,354 928,828 
657,502 657,582 
447,747 447,747 

t26;361 
773,578 773,578 
920,029 1,046,390 

39,345 1,034,293 1,073,638 
1,235,065 1,235,065 

_00 645,243 323,401 968,644 

3,785,45~_ 449,762 2,896,254 ---1~!31,472 -_.-

1,413,028 1,472,817 2,885,845 
416,615 416,615 
346,878 346,878 
466,274 466,274 
722,121 _0' ___ 

122,121 ___ 00-

~lli.. -.--1.172817 4,837,733 0'0 __ -

7,t50,372 1,922,579 2,896,4§:i.. 11,969,205 ---.-
65,997 4,079,692 (2,896,254) 1,249.435 5,274,948 

151,378 ~l!~ 2,896,254 3,026,688 (3,026,688) 

217,375 4,058,748 4,276,123 2,248,260 

14,697,035 26,709,423 41,406,458 7,840,866 

$ 14,914,410 $ 30,768,17t $45,682,581 l1~0~9~116 

The accompanying noles are an integral pan of the financial sta!eUl~nls, 

~ 

Res!ricted .,_ .. _-
Permanently 

RestrIcted ~L_ ~ 

$ 2,536,150 
2,164,298 

$ 2,388,453 7,996,466 
1,107,030 

897,508 999,127 
$ 1,809 1,502,898 2,070,246 

400,000 578,225 

-"._-- 7,896 1,043,855 

~O. 5,276,757 --1.!!.ill,3,~ 

928,828 
657,582 
447,747 

773,578 
1,046,390 
1,073,638 
1,235,065 

---'- 968,644 

7,131,472 

2,885,845 
416,615 
346,878 
466,274 
722,121 ----- .. 

4,837l,~L 

--'-- 11,969,205 

1,809 5,276,757 6,526,192 

(3,026,688) ----
1,809 2,250,069 6,526,192 

5,526,959 ~!~ 54,774,283 

~5,!j28,768 $ 15,617,894 $ 61,300,475 
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nevenues and other support: 
Assessments 
Ann,,"1 appeal 
Pooled Investment income 
Other investment Income 
Collections 
Contributions 
CDF Grant 
Other 

Total revenue 

E'penses: 
Program ser.tice5: 

C~tholic Charities 
Christian Formallon 
Communication 
Distributions: 

Education Fund 
Other lunds 
National collections 
Other 

Pastoral Concerns 

Total program services 

Supporting services: 
Administration 
Capital expenditures 
Development 
Finance 
lay emptoyee benefits 

Total supporting services 

Total expenses 

Excess/{daficiency) 01 ravenue over axpenses 

Net assets released from restrictions 

Changes in net assets 

Net assets at beginning 01 year 

Net assets at end of year 

""";"r?!'ft~ 

CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF WILMINGTON, INC, 

Statement of Al'tjvities - Modified Cash Basis 
fur the year ended June 30,1997 

unrestricted Restricted 
Board Donor Temporarily Permanently 

General Designated ~~ TOlal -.B~stricted Restricted Total ~ 

$ 2,380,600 $ 2,380,600 $ 2,380,600 
2,420,868 2,420,868 2,420,868 
2,205.524 $ 3,463,711 5.669.235 $ 1,832,561 $ 1,832,561 7,501,796 

1,238,32B 1.238,328 1,238,326 
39,163 91,055 130,218 862,808 862.808 993,026 
25,684 311.240 336,924 2,040.740 $ 13,334 2,054,074 2,390,998 
33,750 25,000 58,750 350,000 350,000 408,750 

215,220 102,155 , 317,375 20,718 ~1,'L 338,093 

7,320.§QlL 5,231,489 12,552,2§!L 5,106.827 13.334 -2..120,161 ---.!1,,6?2,,4,QlL 

752.546 $ 162,844 915,390 915,390 
518,957 518,957 518,957 
471,088 471,088 471,088 

624,254 624,254 624,254 
269,229 112,152 381,381 381,381 

43,824 823,537 867,361 867,361 
325.800 325,800 325.600 

,... 655,~!,l_'L 253.68G 909,669 909,669 

__ 2]6~.t9~_ ,. §.??,!lli.... 1,722,787 5,013,900 . . 5,013,900 
-~'.'., ... -- ----

972,073 524,815 1,496,888 1.496,888 
546,919 546,919 546,919 
337.323 337,323 337,323 
474,869 474.869 474,869 
174,192 174,192 174,192 

-MQ~,~?~ .. •. ,,_ .. 5.~,?t5 3,030,191 - . 3,030,191 ----- --,,--

5,273,575 _.J"og~. 1,722,787 8,044,091 ----- 8,044,091 

2.047,234 4,183,760 (1,722,787) 4,508,201 5,106,827 13.334 5,120,161 9,628.366 

588,031 (92,250) 1,122,787 .. 2,218,568 12,025,983) (192,585) ~.16,~ 

2.635,265 4,091,510 6,'126,775 3,080,844 (179,251) 2,901,593 9,628,368 

12,061,710 ...1R,617,913 34,679.6.13_3 .. 4,760,022 5,706,210 10,466,232 ~,,145,915 

$ 14 .6!3] ,03~ $ 26,709,423 $ 41.40El,4~ L7,840,86§... $5,526.959_ $)3,367,6:>5 $ 54,774,283 

The ~ccompanying notes are an integral pan of the financial statements, 



CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF WILMINGTON, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

(used in)/provided by operating activities: 
Net appreciation on pooled investments 
Other investment income 
(Increase)/decrease in pledges receivable 
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 
Increase in assets held for affiliates 
Increase/{de'crease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Increase in assets owed to affiliates . 

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments for operations 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Deposits into pooled investments 
Amounts drawn from other investments for priests' pension 

payments 
Purchase of building or improvements 
Issuance of notes receivable 
Repayments of notes receivable 

Net cash provided by/(used in} investing activities 

Net (decrease}/increase in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year $ 

Non-cash activities: 
Forgiveness of note receivable 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 

5 

1998 

$ 6.526.192 

(6.657,806) 
(1,107,030) 

(188,401 ) 
400,022 

(13,810,866) 
(87.491) 

13,810,866 

(1,114,514} 

3,947,000 
(1.338,660) 
(1,635,912) 

344,480 
(2,000) 

(400,000) 
82,000 

996,908 

(117,606) 
574,735 

457,129 

1997 

$ 9.628.368 

(6,246,578) 
. (1,238,328) 

3.134,038 
(513,909) 

(11,320.160) 
163,531 

11,320,160 

4,927,122 

2,794,006 
(1,255.218) 
(6,515,313) 

321,788 
(138,804) 

50,985 

(4,742,556} 

184,566 
390,169 

$ 574,735 

$ 491,100 
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CATHOLIC DIOCESE OF \VILMINGTON, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Signific,ant Accounting Policies: 

Nature of Opera tions: 

Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) is ~ not-for-profit corporation having as 
its objects and purposes the promotion of the teachings of Jesus Christ, as taught and set forth 
by the Roman Catholic Church throughout the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington in the State 
of Delaware and the nine (9) Counties of the State of Maryland's Eastern Shore and such 
territory over which the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington will have jurisdiction as delegated 
by proper authority of the Universal Roman Catholic Church. Approximately 50% of the 
revenue for the Diocese is generated through income on investments. 

Basis of Reporting: 

The Diocese reports using the modified cash basis of accounting, which differs from the 
accrual basis principally in not recognizing certain pledges and grants a:nd in not establishing 
liabilities for pension liabilities. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
these principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The accompanying financial statements reflect only the operation of the Diocese. Certain 
other operating entities have not been combined in the accompanying statements, the more 
significant of which are as follows: 

Affiliated Parishes 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Catholic Charities, Inc. 
Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Catholic Ministry to the Elderly, Inc. 
Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. 
Catholic Youth Organization, Inc. 
Children's Home, Inc. 
Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 
Seton Villa, Inc. 
Siena Hall, Inc. 

6 
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~otes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Basis of Reporting, continued: 

The Diocese acts as a fiduciary for the above entItles by investing funds in its pooled 
investment and cash management accounts on behalf of the above entities. 

Financial Statement Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements: of Not-For-Profit Organizations." 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset 
categories fo11o\vs: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of 
operations and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be 
limited by other factors such as by contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed 
restrictions have not been met and pledges receivable for \vhich the ultimate purpose 
of the proceeds is not permanently restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require 
by donor restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be 
made available for operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

Contributions: 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made." Noncash contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. 
Contributions of cash and other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted 
operating revenue if the contributions are received with donor stipulations that limit the use 
of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as 
net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions, which are received and 
expended within the same fiscal year, are reported as unrestricted revenues. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Cash: 

At times the Diocese maintains cash balances that may exceed federally insured limits. 

Pooled Investment~: 

Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of 
-activities of activities includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and 
losses, net of consulting and custodial costs. 

The Diocese manages an investment pool for its investments and those of its affiliated 
organization. The investment pool is held in a custody account at Delaware Trust Capital 
Management. The pool is invested in a combination of fixed income and equity securities 
and mutual funds. 

The Diocese utilizes a total return policy to detennine the level of support for operations and 
capital expenditures from pooled investments. The level of support is detennined annually. 

The investment pooL is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. 
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty 
related to changes in the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in risks in the near term could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. 

Pledges Receivable: 

Except for pledges made to the Annual Catholic Appeal and grants made by the Catholic· 
Diocese Foundation, Inc., which are accounted for on a cash basis, unconditional promises to 
give are reported at fair value as pledges receivable and contributions in the period the 
promise is received. The Diocese is not the recipient of any conditional pledges. 

Real Estate: 

Real estate consists of buildings and the related land. All acquisitions are capitalized at cost, 
when purchased, or at fair value at date of gift, when donated. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SF AS 93), "Recognition- of 
Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations," requires not-for-profit organizations to 
recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future benefits of their long-lived tangible 
assets. The Diocese has not adopted SF AS 93. The effect of not complying with SF AS 93 is 
not reasonably determinable. 
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1. 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Assets Held forlDue to Affiliates: 

These assets are owned by the affiliated corporations and invested for the affiliates by the 
Diocese in the pooled investments. 

Reclassifications: 

Certain amounts in the 1997 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 
1998 presentation. 

2. Pooled Investments: 

The Diocese invests in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. 
The composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 
Domestic equity 
Internationat equity 

Total pooled investments 

$ 880,223 
13,962,359 
32,681,579 

2,992,486 

$ 50,516,647 

$ 640,976 
13,333,273 
28,184,969 

2,672,052 

$ 44,831,270 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 
1998 and 1997. 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 was comprised of the 
following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net appreciation 

Pooled investment income 

1998 

$ 1,338,660 
6,657,806 

$ 7,996,486 

1997 

$ 1,255,218 
6,246,578 

$ 7,501,796 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amounts of 
S310,920 and $274,409 for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 
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3. 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Pledges Receivable: 

Pledges receivable as of June 30, 1998 are due as follows: 

Amounts due within one year 
Amounts due in one to five years 

$ 454,746 
74,169 

$ 528,915 

4. Notes Receivable: 

Notes receivable at June 30, 1998 and 1997 were as follows: 

1998 1997 

8t. Mark's High School (roof repairs) - payable in annual 
installments of $40,000 the first year and $45,000 the 
next eight years beginning December 30, 1997, 
non-inte rest bearing $ 360,000 

St. Anthony of Padua (construct Padua Academy) -
payable in annual installments of $200,000 due 
June 30, non-interest bearing 1,661,000 $ 1,686,000 

S1. Helena (past due assessment) - payable in ten 
semi-annual installments of $4,500 plus interest 
at 3%, beginning June 30, 1993 4,500 

Holy Family (refinance) - payable in two installments 
of $12,500 due June 1, 1998 and January 1, 1999, 
non-interest bearing 12,500 25,000 

Total notes receivable 2,033,500 1,715,500 

Allowance for uncollectible receivables (1,008,900} {1,00a,900} 

Total notes receivable, net $ 1,024,600 $ 706,600 

5. Related Party Transactions: 

Certain members of the Diocese's board are also board members of certain affiliated 
corporations. 

The Diocese includes on its balance sheet assets owned by affiliated corporations which are 
reported as restricted net assets. These assets are owned by the affiliated corporations and are 
included in the financial statements of the Diocese to portray the fiduciary relationship on 
these assets. 

10 

DOW 03127 



T 
I 

5. 

Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Related Party Transactions, continued: 

The Diocese received assessments from its parishes_ in the amount of $2,536,150 and 
S2,380,600 for the years ended June 30, [998 and 1997, respectively, and from Catholic 
Cemeteries in the amount of $57,000 and 555,000, respectively. 

During 1998 and 1997, the.Catholic Diocese Foundation awarded the Diocese $467,100 and 
$1,987,470, respectively. Bec.ause the Diocese reports on a modified cash basis, only the 
cash amounts received from the Catholic Diocese Foundation were. included on the 
statements of activity of the Diocese. 

In 1997, the Diocese received $4,424,140 from the Foundation's Education Fund. Of this 
amount, $3,000,000 represented a pledge receivable as of June 30, 1996 to provide 
supplements to teachers' salaries at parish and Diocesan elementary and secondary schools . 

. 
The Diocese disburses funds on behalf of Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. for wages, 
payroll taxes, health benefits, and other expenses. During the years ended June 30, 1998 and 
1997, Press reimbursed the Diocese a total of$215,621 and $213,810, respectively. 

The Diocese provided funding to related organizations. The more significant funding was 
provided as fo11O\v5: . 

Cathoric Press of Wilmington, Inc. 
Cathoifc Charities, Inc. 
St. Mark's High School 
Catholic Youth Organization 
St. Thomas More Academy 

$ 

1998 

375,692 . 
89',250 
252,716 
37,399 

965,575 

1997 

$ 400,000 
1,014,390 

276,036 
18,280 

In addition, the Diocese advanced $400,000 to St. Mark's High School for a roof repair 
project during 1997. This advance was converted to a note receivable during 1998. The 
Diocese forgave a $491,000 note receivable from St. Mark's High School in 1997. 

The Diocese provides administrative services for the Catholic Diocese Foundation, the 
Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc., and St. Thomas More Academy, Inc. The Catholic 
Diocese Foundation was invoiced $12,926 and $23,142 for these services for the years ended 
June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. The Diocese absorbed the cost of the services to the 
Catholic Press of Wilmington, Inc. and St. Thomas More Academy, Inc. since the amounts 
are not significant. 

The Diocese provides life insurance and long-term disability for all full-time employees of 
the Diocese, parishes, and certain affiliated corporations, at no cost to those entities. These 
amounts were not significant. The Diocese also provides pension for all full-time employees 
of the Diocese, parishes and certain affiliated corporations. Pension costs amounted to 
$1,580,000 and 51,000,000 for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Of 
these amounts, approximately $43,600 a-nd $38,600 were charged to other entities for the 
years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

5. Related Party Transactions, continued: 

The Diocese charged rental fees of $1 ,788' and $1,716 for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 
1997, respectively, to the Catholic Diocese Foundation and rental fees of $19,244 and 
518,480 for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively, to the Catholic Press of 
\Vilmington. A diocesan-O\vned building was used by Catholic Youth Organization, without 
charge, since the value was'not significant. 

6. Pension Plans: 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory detined benefit pension plan (the Plan) covering all 
full-time lay employees of the Diocese, parishes, and affiliated corporations, except Catholic 
Charities, which has a separate plan. The Plan benefits are based on a monthly pension equal 
to 1 % of the high five year average compensation for each year of service. The following 
table sets forth the Plan's status determined using the measurement dates of January 1, 1998 
and 1997: 

Accumulated benefit obligation, including vested 
benefits of $9,212,500 and $8,238,350 

Plan assets at fair value 
$ 9,542,861 

7,826,738 
$ 8,602,100 

6,872,009 

The more significant actuarial assumptions utilized as of each valuation date are as follows: 

Cost method 
Interest rate 
Mortality 
Salary progression 

Aggregate 
7.5% per annum 
1984 uniform premium table 
4.0% per annum 

For the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, $500,000 and. $0, respectively, have been 
funded into the Plan. 

The fair value of Plan assets as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 was S8,028,532 and $7,244,549, 
respectively. 

The Diocese has also established a Revocable Priests Retirement and Welfare Trust to cover 
the health and retirement cost of the clergy of the Diocese. As of June 30, 1998 and 1997 the 
fund assets totaled $7,396,777 and $6,634,226, respectively. This balance is included within 
other investments on the balance sheet. 

7. Income Taxes: 

The Diocese is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from 
federal taxation under Section 50 I (c )(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

8. Subsequent Event: 

The Diocese has renegotiated its policies for property, liability, employee fidelity, and errors 
and omissions insurance coverage. In that conne::tion, an aggregate deductible in the amount 
of $200,000 is effective July I, 1998 for claims made for these types of coverages. 

9. Commitments and Contingencies: 

The Diocese guaranteed a loan of St. Thomas More Academy, Inc. CSt. Thomas), which had 
an outstanding balance of $527,000 at June 30, 1998. 

In addition, the Diocese will support the operations of St. Thomas during the first several 
school years of operation when enrollment levels and corresponding tuition is not expected to 
cover operating expenses and planned capital expenditures. It is estimated that 
approximately $3.5 to $4.5 million of Diocesan support will be required for St. Thomas for 
the years 1998 through 2004. During 1998, approximately $965,000 was provided to St. 
Thomas by the Diocese in the form of contributions. It is expected that further support will 
be provided by loans or additional ~ontributions from the Diocese. 
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Catholic D ~se of Wilmington, Inc. 
Financial Trends 

FY 03 Bud et FY 02 Estimate FY 02 Budget 
General Revenues 
Parish Assessment $ 3,283,844 47.7% $ , 3,125,875 46.8% $ 3,124,200 50.9% 
Appeal 2,086,701 30.3% 2,038,239 30.5% 1,452,602 23.7% 
Parish Over Goal Appeal Rebates (41,700) (154,157) (91,600) 

Collections: 
Communications 25,000 24,941 25,000 
Human Development 3,000 3,000 3,000 
Aids .Q 28,000 0.4% .Q 27,941 0.4% Q 28,000 0.5% 

Cemetery Assessment 125,000 1.8% 120,000 1.8% 120,000 2.0% 
Gifts and Contributions and Other 57,500 0.8% 57,659 0.9% 50,000 0.8% 
CDF Grants 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 0 0.0% 
Subsidiary Corporation Pension Contribution 50,000 0.7% 45,000 0.7% 45,000 0.7% 

Subtotal General Revenues 5,589,345 81.2% 5,260,557 78.8% 4,728,202 77.0% 

Investment Income 
General Fund 729,025 10.6% 764,038 11.4% 764,038 12.4% 
Security Fund 359,920 5.2% 416,354 6.2% 416,354 6.8% 
Charity Fund 206,580 3.0% 232,971 3.5% 232,971 3.8% 

Subtotal Investment Income 1,295,525 18.8% 1.413,363 21.2%1 1.413,363 23.0% 

Total Genl Rev & Inv Inc $ 6,884,870 100.0% $ 6,673,920 100%j $ 6,141,565 100% 

NET BUDGET EXPENSES: 
Administration $ 4,189,306 53.7% $ 3,756,265 52.8% $ 4,045,685 54.8% 
Catholic Charities 990,756 12.7% 960,766 13.5% 963.416 13.0% 
Catholic Education 850,282 10.9% 811,119 11.4% 726,405 9.8% 
Communications 95,804 1.2% 90,003 1.3% 98,341 1.3% 
Development 307,486 3.9% 273,410 3.8% 256,006 3.5% 
Finance 422,541 5.4% 381.420 5.4% 391,848 5.3% 
Pastoral Services 938,915 12.0% 839.405 11.8% 903,686 12.2% 

Net Budget Expenses 7,795,090 100.0% 7,112,388 100.0% 7,385,387 100.0% 

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) $ (910,22J)) $ . (438,468) $ (1,243,822) 

0 
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NET BUDGETS FUNDED BY THE DIOCESE 

FYOO FY01 FY02 FY02 FY 03 DIFFERENCE 
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATED BUDGETED FY03 LESS 

NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE FY 02 BUDGET % 
,o1lNISTRATION 

Bishop's Office 105,618 110,275 114.643 114.500 122,657 8,014 7.0% 
Bishop's Residence 40,761 43,071 44.10B 42,147 45,266 1,158 2.6% 
Building Committee 1,086 2,000 2,000 2,000 1,B10 (190) (9.5%) 
Charity Fund (mise) 0 40,000 32,833 32,833 32,833 0 0.0% 

Clergy in Prof Sludies* 42,218 0 0 0 0 0 #DIVIO! 
Council for Religious 454 2,500 0 0 0 0 #DIVIO! 

VG Administration 89,82B 93,607 97,632 98,359 109,539 11,907 12.2% 
Lobbyist 37,408 33,225 31,471 29,745 32,415 944 3.0% 

Capital Equipment (GF) 51,196 75,000 75,000 75,000 100,000 . 25,000 33.3% 
Capital Improvements (GF) 13,Q62 82,000 82,000 70.955 115,000 33,000 40.2% 

Other General Fund Exp (GF) 689,673 450,892 585,168 380,376 533,838 (51,330) (8.8%) 
Lay Pension Contribution (GF) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 0 0.0% 

Lay Group Term Life Insur (GF) 116,443 124,000 126,000 149,009 154,176 28,176 22.4% 
Lay Long Term Disability (GF) 10B,297 114,000 116,500 94,780 98,568 (17,932) (15.4%) 

Lay Blood Bank (GF) 1,08B 1,054 1.100 1,135 1,100 0 0.0% 
NatllRegional Assessments (GF) 107,215 110,200 115,500 115,950 126,450 10,950 9.5% 

Christmas Bonus (GF) 52,708 53,000 52,000 53,946 54,000 2,000 3.8% 
High School Appeal Allocations (GF) 327,800 327,800 339,273 344,940 344,940 5,667 1.7% 

Pastoral Council 84 185 150 155 200 50 33.3% 
Pastoral Planning 553 50,000 30,000 11,250 30,000 0 0.0% 

Pastoral Plan· Sr. Suzanne 5,166 0 0 0 0 0 #DIVlm 
Council of Priests 7,561 9,327 8,642 8,358 8,910 268 3.10/0 

Vicar for Priests . 14,421 13,245 12,564 11,205 12,865 301 2.4% 
Law Department 115,037 158,259 143,238 140,370 202,862 59,624 41.6% 

MIS 157,146 250,528 171,385 140,476 169,577 (1,808) (1.1%) 
Tribunal 198,915 226,622 218,102 195,727 240,289 22,187 10.2% 

Women's Commission 5,616 7,294 2,193 5,070 2,193 0 0.0% 
Human Resources 162,563 144,739 169,412 164,660 164,418 (4,994) (2.9%) 

The Dialog 420,617 425,183 467,701 467,701 478,730 11.029 2.4% 
Vianney House" 75,018 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/OI 

Admin Spec Assistant 6,616 6,550 7,070 5,618 6,670 (400) (5.7%) 
3,954,168 3,954,556 4,045,685 3,756,265 4,189,306 143,621 3.5% 

Less: Restricted Funds' (117,236) 0 a 0 0 0 #DIV!O! 

Total Administration 3,836,932 3,954,556 4,045,685 3,756,265 4,189,306 143,621 3.5% 

CATHOLIC CHARITIES 998,900 974,385 963,416 960,766 990,756 27,340 2.8% 

CATHOLIC EDUCATION 
Boy Scouts 1,839 2,100 3,850 2,000 4,050 200 5.2% 

. Campus Ministry 90.082 103,515 87,822 66,652 88,347 525 0.6% 
Catholic Schools 221,067 220,953 248,452 348,269 373,122 124,670 50.2% 

CYOlYouth Ministry 107,427 123,501 128,60.0 128,600 133,700 5,100 4.0% 
Deaf Ministry 7,773 10,725 10,725 8,775 10,625 (100) (.9%) 

Dir Religious Education 191,877 218,585 206,664 204,653 223,62B 16,964 8.2% 
Girl Scouts 1,220 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 0 0.0% 

Resource Center 26,453 32,124 34,222 26,225 10,485 (23,737j #REF! 
Special Ministry 4,266 5,000 4,870 4,745 5,125 255 0.7% 

Total Catholic Education 652,004 717.703 726,405 811,119 850,282 123,877 17.1% 

COMMUNICATION 
Communications 82,131 84,316 98,341 90,003 95,804 (2,537) (2,6%) 

News Radio 0 0 .0 0 0 0 

Total Communications 82,131 84,316 98,341 90,003 95,804 (2,537) (2.6%) 

AI?<=;I?flrl'l 

DOW 03132 



NET BUDGETS FUNDED BY THE DIOCESE 

FYOO FY 01 FY02 FY 02 FY 03 DIFFERENCE 
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED ESTIMATED BUDGETED FY 03 LESS 

NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE NET EXPENSE FY 02 BUDGET % 

I..IcVELOPMENT 
Development 0 0 256,006 273,410 307,486 51,480 20.1% 

Capital Campaign 0 0 185,118 149,641 162,237 (22,881) (12.4%) 
0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/OI 
0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/O! 
0 0 441,124 423,051 469,723 28,599 6.5% 

Less:Restricted funds" a 0 185,118 149,641 162,237 (22,881) (12.4%) 

Total Development 347,445 329,582 256,006 273,410 307,486 51,480 20.1% 

FINANCE 
Finance 369,529 387,314 408,299 409,812 430,588 22,289 5.5% 

Service-MaintlDelivery (11,425) (25,339) (16,451) (28,392) (8,047) 8,404 (51.1%) 
Print Shop a 0 0 a 0 0 

Total Finance 358,104 361,975 391,848 381,420 422,541 30,693 7.8% 

PASTORAL SERVICES 
Archives 13,229 13,285 20,225 2,076 13,850 (6,375) (31.5%) 

Chancery 118,764 128,416 132,756 125,654 143,872 11,116 8.4% 
Chaplains/lnstftulions 272,175 291,482 30J,511 289,801 303,064 1,553 0.5% 

Clergy Cont Education" 51,912 37,228 37,228 37,228 37,228 0 0.0% 
Hispanic Ministry - Seaford 60,162 0 0 0 0 0 #DIV/Ol 

Hispanic Ministry 152,088 214,442 219,146 213,739 243,482 24,336 11.1% 
Ministry to Black Catholics' (38,807) 0 0 (12,682) 22,318 22,318 #DIV/Ol 

Office for Religious 21,144 54,062 42,260 . 43,477 41,383 (877) (2.1%) 
Ordained Deacons 17,545 19,127 20,628 20,572 21,088 460 2.2% 

Deacon Formation" (6,585) 0 22,685 21,435 1,706 (20,979) (92.5%) 
Spirituality Training" (4,570) a 0 0 0 0 #DlV/O! 

Seminary" 229,371 327,151 359,836 286,157 299,747 (60,089) (16.7%) 
Radio Rosary/Marian Dev' (10,318) 0 ° 0 0 0 #DIV/Ol 
Ministry Formation Institute 0 45,645 61,797 61,797 70,950 9,153 14.8% 

Disciples in Mission a 0 a 0 0 a #DIV/OI 
Worship Office 104,170 107,261 80,228 71,086 77,202 (3,026) (3.8%) 

Liturgical Commission 2,034 2,430 2,450 2,450 0 (2,450) (100.%) 
Vocations' 101,022 102,396 85,616 115,793 77,680 (7,936) (9.3%) 

1,083,336 1,342,925 1,386,366 1,278,583 1,353,570 (32,796) (2.4%) 
Less:Restricled Funds*@ 322,025 466,775 482,680 439,178 414,655 (68,025) (14.1%) 

Total Pastoral Services 761,311 876,150 903,686 839,405 938,915 35,229 3.9% 

TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS 
UNRESTRICTED NET EXP 7,036,827 7,298,667 7,385,387 7,112,388 7,795,090 409,703 5.5% 

CHAPLAINS/INSTITUTIONS 
Christiana Hospital 65,660 71,917 75,315 75,191 95,094 19,779 26.3% 

Delaware State Hospital 14,121 15,555 16,575 14,475 14,890 (1,685) (10.2%) 
Delaware Slate Police 6,010 6,060 6,012 6,019 6,085 73 1.2% 

Eastern Correctional 643 1,875· 1,470 638 1,450 (20) (1.4%) 
Gander Hill Prison 1,803 1,952 1,954 1,805 1,993 39 2.0% 

Recovering Community 35,914 37,160 38,998 38,025 46,174 7,176 18.4% 
Nursing Homes 111,310 116,732 117,056 113,375 90,751 (26,305) (22.5%) 

Port of Wilmington 355 600 600 129 613 13 2.2% 
Smyma Prison 36,359 39,631 43,531 40,144- 46,014- 2,483 5.7% 

Total Institutions 272,175 291,482 301,511 289,801 303,064 1,553 0.5% 
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Enclosures: 

Catholic Diocese of Wilmington 
XXIII. FINANCIAL STATE OF THE DIOCESE 

Statistical Index 

Entity: Catholic Cerneteriesf Inc: 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 3D, 2002 and 2001 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 30f 2000 and 1999 

• Audited Financial Statements for the years ended June 3D, 1998 and 1997 

• Budget summary for the year ending June 30f 2003 
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To the Board of DirectorS 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Wilmir.gton, Delawa;.-e 

Report of Independent Accountants 

PricewaterhouseCoopers UP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 
2 00 1 ,\.Iarket Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (2671 3303300 

Ir. our opinion, the acconpanying balance sheets and the related statements of activities and 

changes in net assets and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 

of Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. (Cemeteries) as of June 30,2002 and 2001 and ~he c~anges in its net 

assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity \.vith accounting pr:nciples 

generally accepted in the United States of America. These finan:::ial statements are the 

responsibility of Cemeteries' management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on our audits. We conduc~ed our a:ldits ,ofthese statements in 

accordance with auditing standards generally aeeeptedin the 'Ur.ited States of America, which 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements a:-e free of material misstatement. An audit includes examin:'ng, on a test 

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 

overall financial statement presentation. \Ve believe that om audits provide a reasor,ab:e basis for 

ou, opmlOn. 

September 13,2002 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2002 

Endowed 

Care 

Operating Invested Unrestricted Temporarily 

-General Reserves Resen'es Total Restricted Total 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivaients $ 50,279 172,784 1 g,309 241,372 :Ji 241,372 
Pooled invesunents 4,921,423 5,475,371 10,396,794 10,396,794 
Other investments 156,050 156,050 156,050 
Private mausoleum trost 33,431 33,431 
Special Care Fund for private mausoleums 1,371 1,371 1,371 
AC{;Qunts receivable 159,122 159,122 159,122 
Inventory of graves and crypts 4,918,894 4,918,894 4,918,894 
Land, buildings, equipment, featu:e shrines, net 3,023,671 3,023,671 3,023,671 

Total assets $ g,151,966 5,251,628 5,493,680 :Ji 18,897,274 33,431 $ 18,930,705 

Liabilities and Nef.Assets 

Acco:mts payabll! :Ji 1,230,169 1,230,16~ S 1,230,169 
COfllll'itment to Christiana Care 315,039 315,039 315,C39 

Total Liabilities 1,545,208 1,545,208 1,545,208 

Net Assets: 

Umestricted 6,606,758 6,606,758 6,606,758 
Umestricted-Des:'gnated 5,251,628 5,493,680 lO,745,3C8 10,745,308 
Restricted 33,431 33,431 

Total net assets 6,606,758 5,251,628 5,493,680 17,352,':166 33,431 17,385,497 

Total liabilities & net assets $ 8,151,966 5,251,628 5,493,680 18,897,274 33,431 $ 18,930)05 

The accompanying notes are. an integral part of the fmancial statements. 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2001 

Endowed 
Care 

Operating Invested Unrestricted Temporarily 
.General Resenes Reserves Total Restricted Total 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 294,946 71,816 22,838 389,600 $ 389,600 
Pooled investments 5,535,990 6,477,298 12,013,288 12,013,288 
Other investments 145,429 145,429 145,429 
Private mausoleum trust 36,430 35,430 
Special Care Fund for private mausoleums 1,352 1,352 1,352 
Accounts receivable 182,702 182,702 182,7D2 
Inventory of graves and crypts 3,807,637 3,807,637 3,807,637 
~and, buildings, eqt:.ipment, feature shrines, n~t 3,098,030 3,098,030 3,098,030 

Total assets $ 7,383,315 5,754,587 6,500,136 $ 19,638,038 36,430 $ 19,674,468 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accoun-:S payabl-:! $ 94,035 94,035 $ 94,035 
Commitment to C::llstia.'la Care 815,039 815,039 815,039 

Tota: Liabilities 909,074 909,074 909,074 

l\ et Assets: 
Unrestricted 6,474,241 6,474,241 6,474,241 
Unrestricted-Designated 5,754,587 6,500,136 12,254,723 12,254,723 
Re,tricted 36,430 36,430 

Total net assets 6,474,241 5,754,587 6,500,136 18,728,964 36,430 1&,765,394 

Total liabilities & net assets $ 7,383,315 5,754,587 6,500,136 19,638,038 36,430 $ 19,674,468 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

. the year ended June 30, 2002 

Endowed 

Care 

Operating Invested Unrestricted Temporarily 
General Reserves Reserves Total Restricted Total 

Revenue and other support 

Crypt Sales $ 376,497 $ 93,363 53,785 523,645 $ $ 523,645 
Interment Fees 449,094 449,094 449,094 
Lot Sales 227,862 63,334 32,552 323,748 323,748 
Private Mausoleum Sales 

Memorial Sales 174,557 174,557 174,557 
Foundation Sales 73,611 8,179 81,790 81,790 
LaMl Crypt Sales 31,145 31,145 31,145 
Other operating income 172,654 12,834 955 186,443 186,443 
Parish Cemetery Income 1,470 1,470 1,470 
Pooled Investment income/Closs) 380,000 (851,927) (471,927) (471,927) . 
Income/(loss) - Operaling Reserves (395,880) (395,880) (395,880) 
Private mausoleum trust income/Closs) 19 19 (2,999) (2,980) 

Total Revenue and other support $ 1,886,890 (226,330) (756,4562 904,104 (2,999) $ 901,105 

Expenses: 

Cost of lots, crypts and memo:ials 336,011 336,01 I 336,011 
Sales Expenses - Parish Cemeteries 800 800 800 

. ~1.yroll and related expenses 1,100,572 1,100,572 1,100,572 
~preciation 260,743 260,743 260,743 

Repairs and maintenance of 163,306 163,306 163,306 
buildings, grounds and equipment 

Professional fees 33,058 33,058 33,058 
bsurance 35,856 35,856 35,856 
Public Relations 78,154 78,154 78,154 
Office Expenses - Gate of Heaven 2,052· 2,052 2,052 
Utilities 25,056 25,056 25,056 
Supplies 18,471 1&,471 18,471 
Pension 65,729 65,729 65,729 
Diocesan Assessment 120,000 120,000 120,000 
Other 41,194 41,194 41,194 

Total Expenses 2,281,002 2,281,002 . $ 1,281,002 

(Deficiency) of revenue over expenses (394)12) (226,330) (756,456) (1,376,898) (2,999) (1,379,897) 

Tra.."lsfers of funds for general expenses 57,941 (57,942) 

Transfer offunds for construction 218,687 (218,687) 

Transfer for Old Cathedral 250,000 (250,000) 

Total changes in net assets 132,517 (502,959) (1,006,456) (1,376,898 ) (2,999) (1,379,897) 

Net assets at begirming of Year 6,474,241 5,754,587 6,500,136 18,728,964 36,430 18,765,394 

. assets at end of Year $ 6,606,758 $ 5,151,628 $ 5,493,680 17,352,066 $ 33,431 $ 17,385,497 

The accompanying notes are in integral part of the. financial statements 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

the Year ended June 30, 2001 

Endowed 

Care 

Operating lnve.~ted Unrestricted Temporarily 
General Reserves Reserves Total Restricted Total 

Kevenue and other support 
Crypt Sales $ 442,782 $ 126,509 63,254 632,545 $ $ 632,545 
Interment Fees 404,318 404,318 404,318 
Lm Sales 192,867 55,105 27,553 275,525 275,525 
Private Mausoleum Sales 
Memorial Sales 161,595 161,595 161,595 
Foundation Sales 77,002 8,556 85,558 85,558 
Lav.'l1 Crypt Sales 27,000 27,000 27,000 
Other operating income 151,596 17,850 1,523 170,969 170,969 
Pooled Investment income/(loss) 380,000 (560,345) (180,345) (180,345) 
IncoDe/(loss) - Operating Reserves (218,671 ) (218,671) (218,671) 
Private mausoleum trust income/Closs) 1,352 1,352 (1,311 ) 41 

Total Revenue and other support $ 1,837,160 (17,855) (459,459) 1,359,846 (1,311) $ 1,358,535 

Expenses: 
Cost of lo~.s, crypts imd memorials 361,375 361,375 361,375 
Payroll and related expenses 1,061,127 1,061,127 1,061,127 
De?reciation 252,797 251,797 152,797 

uairs and rnaintenance of 159,637 159,637 159,637 
,uildings, grounds a.,d equipment 

Professional fees 34,160 34)60 34,160 
Ir..surance 35,552 35,652 35,652 
Public Relations 111,739 111,739 111,739 
Utilities 29,82B 29,828 29,828 
Supplies 20,530 20,530 20,530 
Pension 49,233 49,233 49,233 
Diocesan Assessment 114,000 114,000 114,000 
Other 65,456 65,456 65,456 

Total Expenses 2,295,534 2,295,534 - $ 2,295,534 

Deficiency) of revenue over expenses (458,374) (17,855) (459,459) (935,688) (1,311) (936,999) 

Transfers of funds for general expenses 1,136,738 (1,136,738) 

fransfer of:fu.lds from Endowed Care 6,602,265 (6,602,265) 
to Operating Reserves 

rransfer for Old Cathedral 250,000 (250,000) 

Total changes in net assets 928,364 5,447,672 (7,311,724 ) (935,688) (1,311 ) (936,999) 

3et asse';s at begi.rwing of Year 5·,545,877 306,915 13,811,860 19,664,652 37,741 19,702,393 

-\jet assets at end of Year $ 6,474,24] $ 5,754,587 5 6,500,136 18,728,964 $ 36,430 $ 18,765,394 

The accompanying notes are. in integral part of the financial statements 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the Year Ended June 30, 2002 vs. the year ended June 30, 2001 

2002 
Cash flow from operating activities: 

Change in net assets $ (1,379,897) 
Adjustments·to re~oncile change in net assets to l!et 

cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 2,60,743 
Net depreciation on pooled investments 1,054,456 
Other in vestment income (10,621) 
Contributions received and income earned on trust fund 2,999 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Inventory of graves and CI}'Pts· (1,111,257) 
Accounts receivable 23,580 
Prepaid expenses 0 
Accounts payable and accured expenses 1,136,134 
Special Care Fund for Private Mausoleums (19) 
Commitme."'lt for Old Cathedral Cemetery (500,000) 
Due from Diocese ° 

K et cash provided by operating activities (523,882) 

Cash flows from in vesting activities: 
_lI.mounts drawn from pooled ir.vestments for current operations 380,000 
_lI.mount draVvTl f::orn pooled in vestments for Mausoleum Construction 182,000 
Amounts draW[. from pooled and other investment~ for Old 250,000 
Cathedral CemeteI}' 

Amount draVvn from pooled investments for New Cemetery 36,687 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments (186,649) 
Deposits into pooled investments (100,000) 
Increase in land, buildings, equipment and feature shrines (186,384) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 375,554 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (148,228) 

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of year 389,600 

Cash & cash equivalents at end of year $ 241,372 

$ 

S 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial s'.a.tements 
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(936,999) 

252,797 
671,331 

(9,728) 
1,311 

(801,673) 
36,088 

1,060 
9,756 

(1,352) 
(250,000) 

250,000 

(777,409) 

380,000 

° 250,000 

862,320 
(272,315) 
(100,000) 
(195,222) 

924,783 

147,374 

242,226 

389,600 
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

1. Summary of Signific~mt Accounting Policies: 

Nature of Operations: 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. (Cemeteries) is an agency of the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the 
Diocese) departmental structure.' Cemeteries owns and operates Cathedral Cemetery and All Saints 
Cemetery, both located in Wilmington, Delaware and is developing Gate of Heaven Cemetery in 
Dagsboro, Delaware. 

Basis of Reporting: 
Cemeteries reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation: 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A descri?tion of the three net asset categories 
follows: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets are those assets that are available for the support 
of operations and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be lin:ited by 
other factors such as by contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have not yet 
been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which 
require by donor restriction' that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only 
the income be made available for operations in accordance with donor restrictions. As ofJune 30, 
2001 and 2000, there were no permanently restricted net assets. 

Contributions: 

Noncash contributions are recorded at market value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash 
and other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the 
contributions are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a 
donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose for the 
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets 
and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted 
contributions which are received and expended within the same fiscal year are reported as 
unrestricted revenues. 

-7-
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Description of Funds: 
Unrestricted and board designated net assets are available for support of Cemeteries operations. 
Designated net assets were established by aUocating 20% of each lot and crypt sale or future 
development and 10% of each lot, foundation, and crypt sale in order to provide for the future 
m,aintenance and preservation of the cemeteries. 

Effective July I, 2000, the Endowed Care Invested Reserves was broken out into two separate funds. 
The Cemetery Operating Reserves is used for the eventual development of additional Diocesan 
cemeteries and other projects relating to the ongoing development of existing Diocesan cemeteries. 
The Endowed Care Fund is used for regular monthly draws for maintenance of the cemeteries and the 
remaining payments to eCRS as stated in Note 6. 

The income and principal of the Jeandell-Devine Private Mausoleum Tru!?t Fund are temporarily 
restricteq for the care and maintenance of the family mausoleum. This fund is maintained and 
monitored by the Diocese and is invested in fixed income, domestic equity, and international equity 
securities. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less. Cemeteries' investments in cash and cash equivalents are interest-bearing. At times 
these amounts may exceed federally insured limits. 

Pooled Investments: 
Pooled investments are stated at fair vahle. Pooled investment income on the statement of acti'vities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and 
custodial costs. 

Cemeteries participates with the Diocese and other affiliated organizations in an investment pool 
which is held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The pool is invested in a combination of flxed 
income and equity securities and mutual funds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in 
the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near 
term could materially affect the'amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Other Investments: 
Other investments include a certificate of deposit with a maturity date of August 5, 2005. 

Inventory of Graves and Crypts: 
Inventory of graves and crypts consists of acquired land and cost relating to prepare land for present 
and future cemetery sites. Inventory is carried at the lower of cost or market, with cost principally 
determined under the average cost method. 

-8-

DOW 03144 



CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Land, Building, Equipment, and Feature Shrines: 
Land, building, equipment, and feature shrines are recorded at cost Expenditures for major renewals 
and betterments which extend the useful life of property and equipment are to be capitalized; 
expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is 
provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-~ine basis. 

Revenue Recognition 
Cemeteries records revenues and related cost attributable to pre-need sales of burial rights on 
cemetery lots and crypts when customer contracts are signed. 

Reclassifications 
Certain balances in the 200 1 statements were reclassified to conform to the 2002 presentation. 

2. Pooled Investments: 
The composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 2002 and 200 I was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed Income 
Domestic equity 
In temational equity 

Total 

2002 
$ 50,857 

3,118,442 
5,595,705 
l.631,790 

$10,396.794 

2001 
$ 50,202 

3,452,261 
6,794,378 
1,716,447 

hl013,288 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 2002 
and 2001. 

Pooled investment income for the year ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 was comprised of the 
following: 

Inte:-est and dividends 
Net depreciation 

Pooled investment loss 

2002 
$ 186,649 
(1,054.456) 

(867,807) 

2001 
$ 272,315 
(671,331) 

$ . (399,016) 

The pooled investment loss is net of custodial and advisory fees in the amount of $77,024 and 
$84,206 for the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001 respectively. 
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, (NC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

3. Land, Buildings, Equipment, and Feature Shrines: 

At June 30,2002 and 2001, land, buildings, equipment and feature shrines consisted of the following: 

Land 
Buildings 
Construction -in -pro gress 
Trucks and equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Roads & Fence 
Feature shrines 

Accumulated depreciation 

4, Pension Plan: 

2002 
$ 100,000 

2,394,799 
863,559 
829,276 
181,161 
383,800 

1,062,624 
5,815,219 
(2,791,548) 

ll023,671 

2001 
$ 100,000 
2,371,669 

799,273 
765,238 
184,346 
381,256 

1,047,744 
5,649,526 

(2551.496) 

$3.098,030 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time lay 
employees of the Diocese, including Cemeteries. The plan calls for benefits to be paid to eligible 
employees at retirement based on compensation, as defined in the plan document. Contributions to 
the plan from Cemeteries reflect an allocation by the Diocese based on Cemeteries eligible salaries as 
a percentage of total eligible salaries. The amount of pension expense for the years ended June 30, 
2002 and 2001 was S65,729 and $49,233 respectively, and is reflected in operating expenses on the 
statement of activities. 

5, Related Party Transactions: 

Certain members of Cemeteries board are also board members of the Diocese, a related entity. 

For the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, Cemeteries was allo~ated $120,000 and $114,000 
respectively of general and administrative costs which is reflected in the statements of activities. 

The Diocese pays on behalf of Cemeteries, the group tenn life insurance and long term disability 
benefits for all full-time employees of Cemeteries. These expenses are not reimbursed or reflected on 
the financial statements of Cemeteries since the amounts are not significant. 

Catholic Cemeteries also performs certain administrative functions for Parish Cemeteries within the 
Diocese, which it does not own . 
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

6. Commitments and Contingencies 

In '195 5, the Cathedral Cemetery Company, predecessor of Catholic Cemeteries, Inc., contracted with 
Delaware Hospital, now known as Christiana Care Health Services (CCHS), for the sale of a plot of 
land, Old Cathedral Cemetery, located in Wilmington, Dela\vare. Upon commencement of 
construction by CCHS during the 1998 fiscal year, buried remains were discovered at the former Old 
Cathedral Cemetery site. Disinterment by specialists employed by CCHS was completed in 1999, and 
re-interment by Cemeteries was required. The total cost of these procedures was approximately 
$2,500,000. In 1999, Cemeteries entered into a commitment with CCHS to share equally in the costs. 
The agreement stated that Cemeteries will reimburse CCHS $1,250,000 in five equal non-interest 
bearing installments of $250,000 beginning on June 15, 1999. Cemeteries also agreed to pay CCHS 
up to $125,000 as a sixth and final payment for additional directly related costs. In 2000, final costs 
were determined by CCHS and the sixth payment was reduced to approximately $65,000. Payments 
have been made in 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and the remaining liability has been accrued for in 
full. 

Cemeteries also has noncancellable commitments of approximately $729,945 with several 
construction companies for the initial development of the Gate of Heaven Cemetery in Dagsboro, 
Delaware. This work was contracted for in April 2002 and commenced in June 2002. 

7. Income Taxes: 
Cemeteries is a not-far-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal taxation 
under Section 501 (c )(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LlP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 . 
2001 Market Street 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

Report of Independent Accountants 

Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of activities and changes in 

net assets and cash flows present fairly,.in all material respects, the financial position of Catholic 

Cemeteries, Inc. (Cemeteries) as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 and the changes in its net assets and its 

cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 

United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of Cemeteries' 

management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 

audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by ~anagement, 

and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. \Ve believe that our audits provide a 

reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

September 23, 2000 
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C,c.dl0Iic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Balance Sheets 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 ..... ' .... ,--.,~ .---.-

2000 

Unrestricted Unrestricted Designated 

Enduwed 

'Care 

Operating Invested Unrestricted TcmpurMily 

Assets General Reserves Reserves Total Restricted Total 

Cash and cash equivnlents $ 63,775 $ 156,499 $ 21,952 $ 242,226 $ 242,226 

Pooled inveslments 13,789,908 13,789,908 13,789,908 

Other investments 150,416 150,416 150,416 

Private mausoleum trusts $ 37,741 37,741 

Accounts receivable 218,790 218,790 218,790 

Prepaid expenses 1,060 1,060 1,060 

Inventory of graves and crypts 2,980,964 2,980,964 2,980,964 

Land, buildings, equipmr:nt, and feature shrines, net 3,I!W,631 3,180,631 3,180,631 

Due from Diocese 250,000 250,000 250,000 

IV 
$6,695,220 $306,915 $13,811,860 $20,813,995 $37,741 Total assets $20,851,736 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 84,304 84,304 84,304 

Commitment for Old Cathedral Cemetery 1,065,039 1,065,039 1,065,039 

Total liabilities 1,149,343 1,149,343 1,149,343 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 5,545,877 5,545,877 5,545,877 

Unrr:stricted - designated 306,915 13,811,860 14,'118,775. 14,118,775 

Temporarily restricted 37,741 37,741 

Total net assets 5,545,877 306,915 13,811,860 19,664,652 37,741 19,7()2,393 

Total Iiabil itiesand net assets $6,695,220 $306,915 $\3,811,860 $20,813,995 $37,741 $20.851,736 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-. - -
1999 

Total 

$ 197,527 

12,908,636 

299,231 

33,653 
194,617 

3,938 
3,019,694 

2,829,043 

$ 19,486,339 

71,982 

1,125,000 

1,196,982 

4,940,513 

13,315,191 

33,653 

18,289,357 

$ 19,486,339 



Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Unrestricted Unrestricted Designated 

Endowed 
Care 

Operating Invested Unrestricted Temporarily 
General Reserves Reserves Total Restricted Total 

Revenue and other support: 

682,958 Crypt sales $ 478,070 '$ 136,592 $ 68,296 $ $ 682,958 
Interment fees 412,194 412,194 412,194 
Lot sales 212,048 60,584 30,293 302,925 302,925 
Private mausoleum sales 12,917 12,917 12,917 
Memorial sales 187,143 187,143 187,143 
Foundations 63,214 7,024 70,238 70,238 
Other operating income 104,228 22,057 1,398 127,683 127,683 
Pooled investment income 421,500 1,231,272 1,652,772 1,652,772 
Private mausoleum trust income S 4,388 4,388 

Total revenue and other support 1,891,314 219,233 1,338,283 3,448,830 4,388 3,453,218 

Expenses: 

Cost oflots, crypts and memorials 363,179 363,179 363,179 
Payroll and re:ated expenses 992,689 992,689 992,689 
Depreciation 221,227 221,227 221,227 
Repairs and maintenance of 

buildings, grounds and equipment 149,159 149,159 149,159 
')fessional fees 22,000 22,000 22,000 

,.lurance 34,894 34,894 34,894 
Public relations 27,836 27,836 27,836 
Utilities 27,825 27,825 27,825 
Supplies 24,866 24,866 24,866 
Pension 39,542 39,542 39,542 
Diocesan assessment 103,617 103,617 103,617 
Commitment for Old Cathedral 

Cemetery (59,961) (59,961) (59,961) 
Other 93,309 93,309 93,309 

Total expenses 2,040,182 2,040,182 2,040,182 

(Deficiency)/excess of revenue 
over expenses ( 148,868) 219,233 1,338,283 1,408,648 4,388 1,413,036 

Transfer of funds for general 

expenses 303,932 (303,932) 
Transfer offunds for construction 

and Old Cathedrai Cemetery 

liability 450,000 (450,000) 
Net assets released from restriction 300 300 (300) 

Changes in net assets 605,364 (84,699) 888.283 1,408,948 4,088 1,413,036 

Net assets at beginning of year 4,940,513 391,614 12,923,577 18,255,704 33,653 18,289,357 

Net assets at end of year $ 5,545,877 $ 306,915 S 13,811,860 $ 19,664,652 .$ 37,741 $ 19,702,393 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc'. 
Statement of Ac~ivities and Changes in Net Assets 
... -~ the Year Ended June 30,1999 

Unrestricted Unrestricted Designated 

Endowed 
Care 

Operating Invested Unrestricted Tern porarily 
General Reserves Reserves Total Restricted Total 

Revenue and other support: 
Crypt sales $ 370,696 $ .1 05,914 $ 52,955 $ 529,565 $ 529,565 
1 n lerment fees 405,934 405.934 405,934 
LOl sales 190,180 54,557 27,279 272,016 272,016 
Memorial sales 156,91tl 156,916 156,916 
Foundations 60,999 6,779 67,778 67,778 
Other operating income 106,053 37,403 1,396 144.8'52 144.852 
Pooled investment income 350.000 542,226 892.226 892,226 
Private mausoleum trust income $ 1.047 1,047 

Total revenue and 
other support 1.640,778 197,874 630,635 2,469.287 1,047 2,4 70,334 

Expenses: 
Cost of lots, crypts and 

memorials 285,405 285,405 285,405 
Payroll and related expenses 916,195 916,195 916,195 
Depreciation 186,560 186,560 186,560 
Repairs and maintenance of 

buildings, grounds, and 
~quipment 117,717 127,717 127.717 

. ofessional fees 21.000 21.000 21.000 
Insurance 34,154 34.154 34.154 
Pu blic relatiol.ls 48,184 48.184 48.184 
Utilities 21,541 21.541 21,541 
Supplies 21.230 21,230 21.230 
Pension 39,059 39,059 39,059 
Diocesan assessment 71.250 71,250 71.250 
Commitment for Old Cathedral 

Cemetery 1,125,000 1.125,000 1,1 25,000 

Other 65,818 65.818 65,818 

Total expenses 2,963,113 2,963,113 2,963,113 

(Deficiency) excess of revenue 
over expenses (1,322,335) 197,874 630,635 (493,826) 1,047 (492.779) 

Transfer ?ffunds for general 
expenses 398,382 (398,382) 

Transfer of funds for ~onstruction 
and Old Cathedral Cemetery 
liability 775,800 ( 100,000) (675,800) 

Net assets released from 
restriction 300 300 (300) 

Changes in net assets (147,853) (300,508) (45,165) (493,526) 747 (492,779) 

Net assets at beginning of year 5,088,366 692,122 12,968,742 18,749,230 32,906 18,782,136 

Net assets at end of year $ 4,940,513 $ 391,614 $ 12,923,577 $ 18,255,704 $ 33,653 $ 18,289,357 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

2000 1999 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Changes in net assets $ 1,413,036 $ (492,779) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

used in operating activities: 
Depteciation 221,227 186,560 
Net appreciation on pooled investments (1,419,156) (526,912) 
Net appreciation on other investments (l1,194) (22,539) 
Net income earned on private mausoleum trust fund ( 4,088) (747) 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Inventory of graves and crypts 38,730 (926,984) 
Accounts receivable (24,173) 68,107 
Prepaid expenses 2,878 (3,938) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12,322 8,289 

Commitment for Old Cathedral Cemetery (59,961) 779,200 
Due from Di9cese (250,000) 

Net cash used in operating activities (80,379) (931,743) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments for current operations 421,500 350,000 

Amounts drawn from pooled investments for mausoleum construction 200,000 525,800 

Amounts drawn from pooled and other investments for Old 
Cathedral Cemetery 250,000 250,000 

Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments (233,616) (365,314) 

Deposits into pooled investments (100,000) (90,000) 

Deposits into other investments (110,392) 

Proceeds from saie of other investments 160,009 199,369 

Purchase of land, buildings, equipment, and feature shrines (587,344) (184,272) 

Transfer of land development to inventory 14,529 220,774 

Net cash provided by investing activities 125,078 795,965 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 44,699 (135,7(8) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 197,527 333,305 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 242,226 S 197,527 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

l 
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Catholic Cemeteries, fnc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. (Cemeteries), is an agency of the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the 
Diocese) departmental structure. Cemeteries owns and operates Cathedral Cemetery and All Saints 
Cemetery, both located in Wilmington, Delaware. 

Basis of Reporting 
Cemeteries reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-far-Profit Organizations". Resources are reported for 
accounting purposes into separate categories of net assets based on the existence or absence of dOllor­
imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset categories follows: 

• Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations and 
whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors such as by 
contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have not been 
met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate proceeds is not permaneT)tly restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. As of June 30, 2000 and 1999, there were no 
permanently restricted net assets. 

Contributions 
Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made". Noncash 
contributions are recorded at market value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash and other 
non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the contributions are 
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose for the restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in 
the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions 
which are received and expended within the same fiscal year ate reported as unrestricted revenues. 

-6-
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":atholic Cemeteries, Inc . 
• .Jotes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended June 30,2000 and 1999 

Description of Funds 
Unrestricted and board designated net assets are available for support of Cemeteries' operations. 
Designated net assets were established by allocating 20% of each lot and crypt sale for future 
development and 10% of each lot, foundation, and crypt sale to provide for the future maintenance and 
preserlation of the cemeteries. 

The income and principal of the leandell-Devine Private Mausoleum Trust Fund are temporarily 
restricted for the care and maintenance of the family mausoleum. This fund is maintained and 
monitored by the Diocese and is inv.ested in fixed income, domestic equity, and international equity 
securities. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less. Cemeteries' investments in cash and cash equivalents are interest bearing. At times 
these amounts may exceed federally insured limits. 

Pooled Investments 
Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statements of activities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and 
custodial C0Sts. 

Cemeteries participates with the Diocese and other affiliated organizations in an investment pool 
which is held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The pool is invested in a combination affixed 
income and equity securities and mutual funds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in 
the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Other Investments 
Other investments include a certificate of deposit with maturities ranging from November 1999 
through the year 2000. As these certificates of deposits' mature, the funds are deposited into pooled 
investments for operations which is maintained and monitored by the Diocese. As of June 30, 2000, 
other investments include one certificate of deposit with a maturity date of July 28,2000. 

Inventory of Graves and Crypts 
lnventory of graves and crypts consist of acquired land and costs relating to preparing land for present 
and future cemetery sites. Inventory is carried at the lower of cost or market, with cost principally 
determined under the average cost method. 

Land, Buildings, Equipment, and Feature Shrines 
Land, buildings, equipment, and feature shrines are recorded at cost. Expenditures for major renewals 
and betterments which extend the useful life of property and equipment are to be capitalized; 
expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Deprecation is provided 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line basis. 

-7-
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

Reven De Recognition 

Cemeteries records revenues and related costs attributable to pre-need sales of burial rights on 
cemetery lots and crypts when customer contracts are signed. 

Reclassifications 

Certain b~lances in the 1999 statements were reclassified to conform to the 2000 presentation. 

2. Pooled Investments 

Cemeteries invests in a combination affixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. The 
composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 

Domestic equity 

International equity 

. Total pooled investments 

2000 

$ 52,014 
4,242,650 
7,294,165 

2,201,079 

$13,789,908 

1999 

$ 11,832 
3,608,188 
7,454,248 
1,834,368 

$12,908,636 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30, 2000 
and 1999. 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 consisted of the following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net appreciation 

Pooled investment income 

2000 

$ 233,616 
1,419,156 

$],652,772 

1999 

$365.314 

526,912 

$ 892,226 

The pooled investment income is net of custodial and advisory fees in the amount of $92,897 and 
$51,067 for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

-8-
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

3. Land, Buildings, Equipment and Feature Shrines 

4. 

At June 30, 2000 and 1999, land, buildings, equipment, and feature shrines consisted of the following: 

2000 1999 

Land $ 110,471 $ 100,000 
Buildings 2,311,808 1,922,294 
Construction-in-progress 819,525 816,424 
Trucks and equipment 702,357 642,836 
Furniture and fixtures 160,692 139,399 
Roads and fences 326,732 276,232 
Feature shrines 1,047,745 [,009,330 

5,479,330 4,906,515 
Accumulated depreciation (2,298,699) (2,077,472) 

$3,180,631 $2,829,043 

Pension plan 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time lay 
employees of the Diocese, including Cemeteries. The plan calls for benefits to be paid to eligible 
employees at retirement based on compensation, as defined in the Plan document. Contributions to the 
plan from Cemeteries reflect an allocation by the Diocese based on Cemeteries eligible salaries as a 
percentage of total eligible salaries. The pension expense for the years ended lune 30,2000 and 1999 
was $39,542 and $39,059, respectively, and is reflected on the statements of activities. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

Certain members of Cemeteries' board are also board members of the Diocese, a related entity. 

For the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 the Diocese assessed Cemeteries $103,617 and $71,250, 
respectively, of general and administrative costs, which is reflected in the statements of activities. 

The Diocese pays, on behalf of Cemeteries, the group term life insurance and long-term disability 
benefits for all full-time employees of Cemeteries. These expenses are not reimbursed or reflected on 
the financial statements of Cemeteries since the amounts are not significant. 

6. Commitments and Contingencies 

In 1955, the Cathedral Cemetery'Company, predecessor of Catholic Cemeteries, Inc., contracted with 
Delaware Hospital, now known as Christiana Care Health Services (CCHS), for the sale ofa plot of 
land, Old Cathedral Cemetery, located in Wilmington, Delaware. Upon commencement of 
construction by CCHS during the 1998 fiscal year, buried remains were discovered at the former Old 
Cathedral Cemetery site. Disinterment by specialists employed by CCHS was completed in 1999, and 
re-intennent by Cemeteries was required. The total cost of these procedures was approximately 
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Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Notes to Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 

$2,500,000. Ln 1999, Cemeteries entered into a commitment with CCHS to share equally in the costs. 
The agreement stated that Cemeteries will reimburse CCHS $1,250,000 in five equal non-interest 
bearing annual installments of $250,000 beginning on June IS, 1999. Cemeteries also agreed to pay 
CCHS up to $125,000 as a sixth and final payment for additional directly related costs. In 2000, final 
costs were determined by CCHS and the sixth payment was reduced to approximately $65,000. The 
first two payments were made in July 2000 and June 1999, and the remaining liability has been 
accrued for in full. . 

7. Income Taxes 

Cemeteries is a not-far-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal taxation 
under Section 50J(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

8. Subsequent Event 

In March 2000, the Board approved a resolution to redesignate the ending balance in the Endowed 
Care Invested Reserves. The $13,789,908 balance in Endowed Care Invested Reserves as of June 30, 
2000 will be redesignated into $6,602,265 for Cemetery Operating Reserves and $7,187,643 for the 
Endowed Care Fund, effective July f, 2000. The Cemetery Operating Reserves will be used for the 
eventual aevelopment of additional Diocesan cemeteries and other projects related to the ongoing 
development of existing Diocesan cemeteries. The Endowed Care Fund will be used for regular 
monthly draws for maintenance of the cemeteries and the remaining payments to CCHS as stated in 
Note 6. 

-10-
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To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
Wilmington, Delaware 

Report of Independent Accountants 

PricewaterhouseCoopers llP 
2400 Eleven Penn Center 
Philadelphia PA 19103-2962 
Telephone (215) 963 BODO 
Facsimile (215) 963 B700 

In our opinion, the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of activities and cash 
flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. 
(Cemeteries) as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These fin;mcial 
stat~ments are the responsibility of Cemeteries' management; our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these 
statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and 
perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
rresentation. We believe that our audits provIde a re~sonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

October 2, 1998 
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CATHOLIC CEMET.ERIES, INC. 

Balance Sheets 
as of June 30, 1998 and 1997 

1998 1997 
Unrestricted Temporarily 

ASSETS General Designated Total Restricted Total Total 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 90,320 $ 242,985 $ 333,305 $ 333,305 $ 255,053 
Pooled investments 12,952,211 12,952,211 12,952,211 11,396,121 
Other investments 465,668 465,668 465,668 514,363 
Private mausoleum trusts $ 32.906 32,906 29.946 
Accounts receivable 262,724 262.724 262,724 268,494 
Inventory of graves and crypts 2,092,710 2,092,710 2,092,710 1,914,404 
Land, buildings, equipment, and feature shrines. net 3,05~JO~ 3.052,105 .~!J52.10~ 3,0~9,388 

Total assets $5,497,85~ $ 13,660,864 $19,158,723 ~2,90JL $t9.191,629 $17,417,769 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 409,493 409,493 409,493 214,331 

Total liabilities 40~A93 409,493 409,493 214,331 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 5,088,366 5,088,366 5,088,366 5,089,145 
Unrestricted - qesignated 13.660,864 13,660,864 13,660,864 12,084,347 
Temporarily restricted 32,906 32,906 29,946 

Total net assets 5,088,366 13,660,864 18.749,230 __ 3~,906 . 18,782,13Q_ .. 17,203,438 

Total liabilities and net assets $5A97,859 $ 13.660,864 $19.158,723 ~~,906 $ t9. .. J 91 ,629 $17,417,769 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 
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1. .. !, Revenue and other support: 
Crypt sales 
Interment fees 
Lot sales 
Memorial sales 
Foundations 

f 
Other operating income 
Pooled investment income 

-. Private mausoleum trust income :f 
-'''' -Total revenue and 
,'i 

H other support 
fj 
Ii Expenses: 
.1 

I Cost 9f lots, crypts and 

~ 
memorials 

Payroll and related expenses 
~ Depreciation 
~ 
i$ Repairs and maintenance of 

buildings, grounds, and 
equipment 

Professional fees 
Insurance 
Public relations 
Utilities 
Supplies 
Pension 
Diocesan assessment 
Other 

Total expenses 

Excess/(deficiency) of revenue 
over expenses 

Transfers 

Changes in net assets 
Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

Statement of Activities 
for the year ended June 30,1998 

Unrestricted 
General Designated Total 

$ 370,007 $ 158,574 $ ,528,581 
376,981 . 376,981 
235,970 100,800 336,770 
145,742 145,742 
57,342 6,372 63,714 

123,992 39,500 163,492 
2,029,989 2,029,989 

1,310,034 2,335,235 3,645,269 

282,179 282,179 
837,258 837,258 
177,214 177,214 

154,954 154,954 
20,500 20,500 
31,329 31,329 
33,423 33,423 
22,132 22,132 
21,251 21,251 
32,912 32,912 
57,000 57,000 

399,379 399,379 

2,069,531 2,069,531 

(759,497) 2,335,235 1,575,738 
758,718 {758,718} 

(779) 1,576,517 1,575,738 
5,089,145 12,084,347 17,173,492 

$5,088,366 $13,660,864 $18,749,230 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 
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Temporarily 
Restricted Total 

$ 528,581 
376,981 
336,770 
145,742 
63,714 

163,492 
2,029,989 

$ 2,960 2,960 

2,960 3,648,229 

282,179 
837,258 
177,214 

154,954 
20,500 
31,329 
33,423 
22,132 
21,251 
32,912 
57,000 

399,379 

2,069,531 

2,960 1,578,698 

2,960 1,578,698 
29,946 17,203,438 

$ 32,906 $18,782,136 
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 

Revenue! and other support: 
Crypt sales 
Interment fees 
lot sales 
Memorial sales 
Foundations 
Other operating income 
Pooled investment income 
Private mausoleum trust income 
Contributions 

Total revenue and 
other support 

Expenses: 
Cost of lots, crypts and 

memorials 
Payroll and related expenses 
Depreciation 
Repairs and maintenance of 

buildings, grounds, and 
equipment 

Professional fees 
Insurance 
Public relations 
Utilities 

. Supplies 
·Diocesan assessment 
Pension 
Other 

Total expenses 

Excess/(deficiency) of revenue 
over expenses 

Transfers 

Changes in net assets 
Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets al end of year 

. ',f 

Statement of Activities 
for the year ended June 30, 1997 

Unrestricted 
General Designated Total 

$ 471,359 $ 202,013 $ 673,372 
341,892 ;341,892 
199,141 85,989 285,130 
134,870 134,870 
52,866 5,874 58,740 
97,677 46,312 143,989 

2,057,358 2,057,358 

1,297,805 2,397,546 3,695,351 

321,826 321,826 
817,816 817,816 
157,631 157,631 

117,771 117,771 
20,500 20,500 
31,481 31,481 
17,136 17,136 
22,602 22,602 
29,544 29,544 
55,000 55,000 
29,920 29,920 
51,169 51,169 

1,672,396 1,672,396 

(374,591 ) 2,397,546 2,022,955 
673,355 {673,355} 

298,764 1,724,191 2,022,955 
4,790,381 10,360,156 15,150,537 

$5,089,145 $12,084,347 $17,173,492 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the financial statements. 

4 

Temporarily 
Restricted Total 

$ 673,372 
341,892 
285,130 
134,870 
58,740 

143,989 
2,057,358 

$ 3,101 3,101 
26,845 26,845 

29,946 3,725,297 

321,826 
817,816 
157,631 

117,771 
20,500 
31,481 
17,136 
22,602 
29,544 
55,000 
29,920 
51,169 

1,672,396 

29,.946 2,052,901 

29,946 2,052,901 
15,150,537 

$ 29,946 $17,203,438 
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 

Statements of Cash Flows 
for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Changes in net assets . 

$ 

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 
cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Net appreciation on pooled investments 
Other investment income 

.. 
Contributions received and income earned on trust fund 
Increase in inventory of graves and crypts 
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments for current operations 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Deposits into pooled investments 
Purchase of land, buildings, equipment, and feature shrines 
Purchase of other investments 
Proceeds from sale of other investments 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of the fmancial statements. 

5 

1998 

1,578,698 

177,214 
(1,726,053) 

(21,305) 
(2,960) 

(178,306) 
5,770 

195,162 

28,220 

573,899 
(303,936) 
(100,000) 
(189,931) 

(80,000) 
150,000 

50,032 

78,252 
255,053 

333,305 

1997 

$ 2,052,901 

157,631 
(1,755,426) 

(8,889) 
(29,946) 

(193,830) 
(55,263) 
161,699 

328,877 

240,000 
(301,932) 

(95,000) 
(330,277) 
(100,000) 
264,450 

(322,759} 

6,118 
248,935 

$ 255,053 
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CATHOLIC CEMETERIES, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Nature of Operations: 

Catholic Cemeteries, Inc. (Cemeteries) owns and opeiates Cathedral Cemetery and All Saints 
Cemetery, both located in Wilmington, Delaware. 

Basis of Reporting: 

Cemeteries reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial 
statements in confonnity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation: 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-far-Profit Organizations". 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset 
categories follows: 

• 

• 

• 

Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of 
operations and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be 
limited by other factors such as by contract or board designation. 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed 
restrictions have not yet been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate 
proceeds is not permanently restricted. 

Permanently R~stricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require 
by donor restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be 
made available for operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Contributions: 

Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions 
Made". Noncash contributions are recorded at market value on the date of donation. 
Contributions of cash and other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted 
operating revenue if the contributions are received with donor stipulations that limit the use 
of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or the purpose for the restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as 
net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions which are received and 
expended within the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted revenues .. 

Description of Funds: 

Unrestricted and board designated net assets are available for support of Cemeteries' 
operations. Designated net assets were established by allocating 20% of each lot·and crypt 
sale for future development and 10% of each lot; foundation, and crypt sale to provide for the 
future maintenance and preservation of the cemeteries. 

The Jeandell-Devine Private Mauseleum Trust Fund was established during the year ended 
June 30,1997. The income and principal of this fund are temporarily restricted for the care 
and maintenance of the family mausoleum. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 
three months or less. At times these amounts may exceed federally insured limits. 

Pooled Investments: 

Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statement of 
activities includes interest, dividends, and net appreciation. Net appreciation includes 
rea.lized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and custodial costs. 

Cemeteries participates with the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) and 
other affiliated organizations in an investment pool which is held in a custody account at 

. Delaware Trust Capital Management. The pool is invested in a combination of fixed income 
and equity securities and mutual funds. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued: 

Pooled Investments, continued: 

Cemeteries utilizes a total return policy to determine the level of support for operations and 
capital expenditures from pooled investments. The level of support is determined annually. 

The investment pool is .exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. 
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty 
related to change& in the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that 
changes in risks in the near term could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements. ; 

Other Investments: 

Other investments included a variety of certificates of deposit with maturities ranging from 
July 1998 to the year 2000. 

Inventory of Graves and Crypts: 

Inventory of graves and crypts consist of acquired land and costs relating to preparing land 
for present and future cemetery sites. Inventory is carried at the lower of cost or market; with 
cost principally determined under the average cost method. 

Land, Buildings, Equipment, and Feature Shrines: 

Land, buildings, equipment, and feature shrines are recorded at cost. Expenditures for major 
renewals and betterments which extend the useful life. of property and equipment are to be 
capitalized; expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. 
Deprecation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line basis. 

2. Pooled Investments: 

Cemeteries invests in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. 
The composition of pooled investments as ofJune 30, 1998 and 1997 was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 
Domestic equity 
International equity 

8 

1998 

$ 143,297 
3,035,793 
8,746,909 
1,026,212 

$ 12,952,211 

1997 

$ 88,473 
2,887,848 
7,511,280 

908,520 

$ 11,396,121 
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pooled Investments, continued: 

The fair value of investments in Cemeteries was detennined based on quoted market prices at 

June 30, 1998 and 1997. 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997 was comprised of the 

following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net appreciation 

$ 303,936 $ 301,932 
1,726,053 1,755,426 

$ 2,029,989 $ 2,057,358 

The pooled investment income is net of custodial and advisory fees in the amouht of $79,857 
and S73,457 for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 

3. Land, Buildings, Equipment and Feature Shrines; 
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At June 30, 1998 and 1997, land, buildings, equipment, and feature shrines consisted of the 
following: 

1998 1997 

Land $ 100,000 $ 100,000 
Buildings 1,838,064 1,781,313 
Construction-in-progress 1,022,153 1,075,766 
Trucks and equipment 581,133 476,349 
Furniture and fixtures 119,834 112,602 
Roads and fences 270,452 211,098 
Feature shrines 1,011,381 995,958 

4,943,017 4,753,086 

Accumulated depreciation (1,890,912) (1,713,698) 

$ 3,052,105 $ 3,039,388 

Pension Plan: 

The Diocese sponsors a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all full-time 
lay employees of the Diocese, including Cemeteries. The plan calls for benefits to be paid to 
eligible employees at retirement based on compensation, as defined. Contributions to the 
plan. from Cemeteries reflect an allocation by the Diocese based on Cemeteries eligible 
salanes as a percentage of total eligible salaries. The pension expense for the years ended 
June 30, 1998 and 1997 was $32,912 and $29,920, respectively, and is reflected on the 
statements of acti vities. 
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Notes to Financial Statements, Continued 

Related Party Transactions: 

Certain members of Cemeteries' board are also board members of the Diocese, a. related 

entity. 

For the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1997, the Diocese assessed Cemeteries $57,000 and 
$55,000, respectively, of general and administrative costs. 

The Diocese pays on behalf of Cemeteries, the group term life insurance and long-terril 
disability benefits for all full-time employees of Cemeteries. These expenses are not 
reimbursed or reflected on the financial statements of Cemeteries since the amounts are ,not 

significant. 

Income Taxes: 

Cemeteries is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal 
taxation under Section 501 (c )(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

Subsequent Event: 

In 1955, the Cathedral Cemetery Company, predecessor of Catholic Cemeteries, Inc., 
contracted with Delaware Hospital, now known as Christiana Care Health Services (CCHS), 
for the sale of a plot of land, Old Cathedral Cemetery, located in Wilmington, Delaware. 
Upon commencement of construction by CCHS during the 1998 fiscal year, buried remains 
were discovered at the fonner Old Cathedral Cemetery site. Disinterment by specialists 
employed by CCHS is in progress and re-interment will be required. CCHS has requested 
Cemeteries to share equally in the costs; however, the ultimate total cost has not been 

. detennined and is not presently estimable by Cemeteries. In the opinion of management and 
counsel, any additional li~bility, in excess of the amount recorded by Cemeteries, will not 
have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of Cemeteries. 
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-. -+. ." .... . . PRO~tIE~o~~~G~i~%~t~~~Sk ~~~·doro ~-. ----. -.--. - .+._-.. -.. 
~ .. ~~--f= ;EXP:·S~=C~O~~~ : .. = _:-~.=j.=t~:~:~;2~~~;~~!j~~~~~~~f~~ 

I ; ' •. ~ , 

..... 1 , .... --.. - ....... _ .... _ .. _ •. _ .. _._. __ ..•. -.-.-.. .....1 .1. . ..... --•.. ---........ __ ... __ . __ .... __ _ 

:~a.-_lar!es _& ~t:.lated ~~pe'.'.~_~t~r~~J. j .--.--J .. i . ___ -· .... 1--- ... .f----- .. -.. _._ ...... __ 

;~i~%:;;~ i~;~i:~:~; ~ ~~:~~ . J~,. m:~~~!$1 ~~l;lt.JL=:J;: i~: 
505191-**; ;Maintenance-Overtime I I 25,0001' .. ~?~~~_L ... ! 32,000 
505'1"92:**; ;M~j'~t~-;'~~~~-:: Se~~~~al- '''''-r r -"\"8:000- 1' '1" -. . 8,649 I .: -- "'18,000" 
'-'-'-'-'--- ,.- ~ .... -.. -...... --.- ..... -...... --... 1.---.1 - ....... -.. ----,. j.... ··-·----t---·~-· -.. -.-.-------
505210-**iEmployee Health Insurance ! i 114,948: i 56,051' 123,444 
.----_ .. _ ... -1--- , .. - .... ----.. ---- ....... -- -.. -.. -.. -._-+ .... ~ ... -. -.---- .-.. + .. - .~- -- -- -.---.. --.. .. -----------. 

505211-**, ,Blood Bank I i 84 ! i 0, 84 
.-_. ------t···- .. ~ .---.--.. -----.. - .......... '" _ .. "---1' ... ~.-.. -_ .... - .- .. _ .. ---..,,- -.--t- " ---··------1 ----+-- --- .-----. 
50~~~~-*\ ___ 1.I?I.?~e~~~_fen:~~~ ___ ; ... _ .. _______ ._~ ..... l-.--.. ----_~~~~ __ .. ~_ ..... __ ~ __ ~ ..... j-- ______ ~?,9~_ 
505240-**i ! Worker's CompensatIOn 1 i 30,000 ! I 27,186!! 32,000 

.5~~.~23~~_~_".W~~i~y:~~~!~~~~~~~~~~: ':=:-l--~~L' -.~~~··.·~~-~OOO T' "'-r~:~-=~~~:~- 3,835 r ~.-. T~~~ .. =:= 8,240 
505250-**1 :Social Security Taxes ;! . 51,435 i I 25,547 i i 52,753 

.. ---+.- .... ,---....... ----... -.. -.. --·· .. -·---·--r-· .. -·--.. '-r--- u
-- - -----.I·--.-~---.--.. ---

S05280-**! :Medicare ! 12,029 I 5,975 r i 12,337 
. .. f- ... ---+ .. :.----- --'-'"'' ...... --.-.. ---.. - ... --... -: - .. -\.- .. ----.--.- I "'--'r---"-" ,-.--~-.-.. ------.-
505230-**1 ; SIck Leave . i no requesti 1 0 I : ....... ------~ ...... : .... -- ---..... -.- - .... -.. -.- . -...... - ... ----~ - ... + ....... --.... --._.-1---.. r .... · -... ------"1-.. - .... -. --.-------

505270-**: ;Temporary Agency Employment i 23,000 I, 23,274 i i<* 50,000 ---.... - -----1--. __ " __ ' __ - ___ ----_ .. __ .... _. _____ . __ .. ______ , ____ .. ______ . ____ . L ... _ . __ . _____ L_._I _____ · _____ I 
505171-01; :Re1igious Compensation . i 13,3721 1 6,6891: 14,292 

-;TAL-SALARjES AND'RELATEDEXPENDITURE/-'$; 1,129,662 i $i 562,111 I $ 1,179,683 

.. --- -";--" "_-~:·-~·:.--.:-~~.~~~::~.- .. =~=-.-~_~~.--1· ~-.~_'.~._ .... _. ___ ......... C:~l ... :.: .. -.. -.... _._ .. _. ___ _ ---... --r' :OPERATIONAL COSTS l' ; : ... -'- -~ .. -.~ . 
. ----... -:- ... - .. ----. .. -.. *~~-. .. -_. ... -~--- .... ~~ ... -~~-.---.- -.. ---- .. _____ :...-___ L .• '--- --·-----t-.---' . -.- .... ----

: . Miscellaneous Expenditures I I 1 . ; .-. -.. ---.,- .... -. - ... - .. -- ....... . "--'-'''T--''--~--''''''''-'- ----.-.-.-.~ ....... - ..... --- . __ ---l_ ........... _____ . _____ _ 
500539-**1 ,Miscellaneous Other . $i 3,500! $; 912: $. 3,500 ... --........ -.-. -....... -_ ... __ . ________ --_ .. _ ... _ -.... __ .. _. __ + __ .. -1 .. __ . __ .. ___ ._. __ ~. ____ ....... _u_ .. ___ . ____ ..... _ .... ___ _ 

: I I • ! I ! 

. ~:~.~ .~ .. ~. ~: .. : ~u ppli~;~ _.~~~~~~ ~·-~--~~~:~.:==l~-.-L~~:~-·-~·-~~-=t=~J·:.~-~-~~-=·--~. __ ~. ___ . ~~~= 
~6H~~::;-- ~~~::~~~~~~e~ ~- .. ~~~·-·---·+ .. --l·-· .. --.-- ~~~~5+-+--'--'- ~~!:9tl;-·t--·-·--- .. ·~:~~~ 
--·-·-· .. ·--.. r--· -- .... - .. - .. --,,---'-'-' .-......... - ... _ ....... .,...--- ---' --.,.-.... -,.. ....... - .... --.- -----,-.-- -"'---

505504-**! :Chape1 ! I 1,200 I l 421 i 1,000 '--'-.... ---1- ... -.... -'-. .;-- -.--' -.. -- -- --- .. -·----.. ·r·-T------ .... --.. ---t---. -t------. ----, -. .---

j~!~;~;E-~~~~;~~~~S:~Pli:~MisZtSh°1:-E=.~ :~u .. +~=·_n=;';~l.t _ .. ~. ~~ 
!Telephone & Postage .: I I ! 

'_~4' _____ '_;' --~- ,- --_ •• '-'" _ •••••• -- • - ---- ••• -------: ••••.• + .. --. -- -~--····-·---r-·---1·-·-- -~---~-- .. -.'t--------.------. 
_S ~5~.91 ~Q'!':.... ___ .. ~el~p~.~~~ ~ .s:__ __ .. __ ... __ . _,_, . L _! .. _ .. . 3!.~g_..L. -.t.- -..... -~-~J..-.-L. ___ ... ___ 2,200 
505602-02 1 'Telephone - AS !: 3,200 I 972 i I 2,200 

............... -. -' .... ..... -. -. .. - -... -.... -........ -- ........ + .. --. - '. ... -----.. -.. ., .... - ...... - -- .. ·----l--l- ... "'-'- -..... -----
505603-00; 'Telephone - Miscellaneous i: 2,000 ;' 841!: 2,000 
.. ~ .• _ •• _- ----.~.-. ._- • - - .--.---.----. - - --- -- ._-- -•.• _-. - -.- I- - -----.-.. - - --,. ·_--------1 - - ----- .-.. --_ ... --.--.--~~------.- .--.------~-
500570-**1 : Postage l' 6,000 t: 1,944. I 5,000 

·_=-=~.I~·}u~'iti~ .G~,:~i;'~~···E"~·-~-~~:·~·"EI.=-·"__ .==[~=.=--
505831-01!Water, Electric and Security Lights (C)i 7,800 i 1: 3,969 E i 8,000 .----.---.-.-.;.----. --.-. ---.. ---·-·-----T-· --, .-... -.--- ..... ----- - ... -.--. . --.. --T-------

'5832-02 Water & Electric - AS ; I 5,500 I I 2,708 i 5,600 
-.-------- "-'-- .---- -.--------------.-.. --~ ..... -.~ ... - ..... ----.-.--:_r_--- 1-. --.------ --,--'---'-- ..... --

')833-01. Heat - C I i 2,000 I; 30 I I 2,000 -···---_1·_·_ -'."- .'~+'- -0 •••• - •••• -. __ ••• - •••••• --- •• __ ._.t---.-- ~.-.- ... -. --. ···_--t- --"---.--------.---- .--+-.-.--~-----.-.... -.....:.--
~ vj 834-02! ; Heat - AS 1 i 4,200 i· 637 j 4,200 
... --............. -.j-.- ,.- --_. -- .... - .... - .. ' ....... - ......... -.-... -- 1- .. -- .. ,-..... -_... ---,-----. -..... ---...... ------- -.... --------

-5~?~~~-~1·l'· ._.+l:I~~!:.~ --- - --.. --- -. - .... ----- __ L .. --.. -.... ~-- ... -. ~!~QQ- i·- -- ~ .. -- ---.. --... ---·.!?i..t--· ~- .. -.- ..... _~2.2.Q... 
#< *i~~-I~d~s ren~v~tio'ns ';t C;th-;d~al - - ~. .-. i . - ._~~: -. ~I~ • -: ........ - .'-.":"1' ~-'-:~Ii ~~. '~:.-~~~' : 

T""·· ; PAGE #2 I 
--~----~ ____ ~ __ ~ __________ ~ __ L-________ ~ 
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--------t-. -+--.- -- -.-- ·---CATHOL-IE-ckM~T-ERiES. -mc:-L-·--·1-·--- ----- .. +--.-+ ----------­
··~=r=--L-=~~=_~-PR(iPOS!:DBUijGE1 .. FORYiAR20~L-----==1 --r-~------··---­

---·---f-- ~----- .. ---.--- .. _-. ---------. -.-. -~ --1----· .. -. ---I----t------.. -i· ---r'-" ------
~ .. --.--- + -' ,- -.-- -.----------_____ ..1 ___ ,. -.. --. - ---+--l------ --- - --.. - 1-- -r- -----------

i ENDOWED CARE FUND 1 i 1-- 1 r 
·~--.~·:-_:."r· . -_~_-_-_~ .. ---~--~~_._-.. _~~-. _~'. ·.r -·1·-- . -.- ~- .. ~ :~:---:--~r·-~~l~~~-~·~·~~-: .. :·~·-l~··~~~·~=·~:=~=-=-~ 

ACCT. __ ~_. t~~~9f0E-~¢.~·<?@T-(-~.·~--.. ·- __ -: .. t-~y.)§§1~2(io2-L. J6-~~Xoo~f200t~·~:t- .fY206~3 
. ______ ... ___ ... : ____ L ___ .. _. ____ ... ___ ... __ . ___ .: ___ .l .. I _._. . ... -.i.- L ..... __ .. __ .L ...1 ______ . ______ . __ 
.A~.TI~IP~T~!? REYE:riU~_FOR.E~D_().~EI? __ S:_~~ ... -.. __ " .. _ .. _~_ .... I __ c... .... _______ ._L_) __ ... _ ... __ ... _____ . 

-:~~ _t:~~l~:~t~~_i_: . ~ --tt~--~-~~~~~~t~ -~~~ I =l-=~-=!~:~~~-
10% ; .. !Mausoleum Sales .. AS i i 21,850 :: 4,411 I 21,286 

------, ..... - ,.----:--"----------- --.--.--~ .. 1---,--,,- -.-- -.-.-; .. -.--..... -------;T.- 1-----.-----
10% ! .. :foundatIOn Sales .. C -+ 1,964 i I 1,085 i 2,111 

T~~~y:r~~-fo~ndation Sales .. A~=--=-_....l=~I------- ---~ooOT-.. t---- 3,145 I -'--6,444 

·E~DO~_~tREFUND-·-·-- ~----t $r- --i08,672+$1 42A30ht- --lO4,841 
: i . I : i ! · _____ . _____ .+--..._. __ .... _____ ._. __ .. __ ~---:.......---.. -.. -.. _ .... __ +_. __ . i .-.t----------I 

--... . -f--- --.. ----.. ·---t-.. -. -------~--+----- t-.. ·-r-I-------l 
· ____ ~ _L ____ ._ .. _ : _..:.. __ . __ . ______ ~- __ .. _. ___ L_ -+ ___ .. _____ ... ____ . 
REPQRT. ON D!SBu:~~EME~TS T.O ENDOWED CARE FUND ~ ___ ~ __ ._.. . . ~--.-~---~--.-. 

'Tent Balance In Endowed Care Savmgs Accoun ~ 15,000 I $: 15,723 [ $[ 15,000 
---.----------. -~-.... -----.--... ;;-1-....... -7"-.. -.-- ---. ---+----,.---- ---
"icipated Revenue for Endowed Care Fund i 108,672 I! 42,430 ! i 104,841 .:"-. -------- -----... --------------;----; ..... ---, ... --- ---.. ----..... r- -.. -- ... -.-------j----, ... ---

AutlcIpated Transfer to Endowed Care PortfolIo (DlOce! (100,000) I: (50,000)!: (100,000) 
p~oj~cte(TB~[;;;~i~E~;~~C;:;:;Savings Ac~:-$! 23,672 ! . $: 8,153 1-'$1 19,841 
.. --- --'--1-"" - ... -_ .. 

I 1 i 

• ~-~~j:~t~-=~=~~-=---~-.~=:=L~~~~~-.~~ ! ~= i==-=ft=-~-==== 
I Iii i I 

, . I ; I ' I : 
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... j-. - :--.--.. - ... ---PRoi6IE~oihl~G~:}1~¥~~1~-i~o~~~oof.- .-. -. _____ i_ .. -+-.--.-... -.... --------. 
. -.-~-~_ ~~ .... -=~~-:-=~-~ .. ~-=._~~=:~_-~~ _ _=~_-_~~ l_--=·_.=_~=:I~_.:~~- ~.=~-. ~._.--~- -~ .. ~'~~~::.='~=~'~_-_:-~~ 

!; DEVELOPMENT/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ~ . 

... -T-r=~~-~-~-::~~~-.~:~~l~l~~ --~~I:j- .....•.. -.;£~=--~= 
ACCT. f... i~~~OME.~~~91}N_'I~ __ .. ----.. -1- .~. FY 2o.01-.?~02 __ I_ ... ~6 MC?_S_22o.1-~0.0_? ._ ... + JY_200~~2003 

L ~. L ....... _____ ...... _. ~. _. __ ._ J. " ... 1 ...... _ __ _ __ '_ ..: ____ 1 .. ______ ... __ ._ .. ~ .. i __ ._~ ___ ~ ..• _ .. _ •• _. __ 

ANTICIPATED REVENUE FOR DEVELOPMENT/CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS :; 
... 20% .. -;---. -rM~~;~I-;u-~'s~i~s~-c -....... (-$'!--- - . -- 98~857T---f-'-- -.. -33:800 ':---i~-- -.- -. 80:000--
....... _. -.. .... .- --'-'- .. -.. __ .. _--. -_ ... _.- _ .... _._.- . __ ... ~ ... _ .. -_._-_.-._--_. -_.,. .. . .. - _ ... _--,. -----.-- _ .. _ ... -.... _--

20% i - /Mausoleum Sales - AS i I 43,700 i ~ 8,942, 43,720 ---.-.- .. 1-- ....... - . --...... -. . '-'-- . --' -'1 • L -. - -- .-. i';' .. - -'-' " ~ .;-.- .. - - -. '---' 
20% ; - ;Lot Sales - C !; 8,000 i; 4,709 '. 10,000 

.-.. --- ··-f- -. ,- --- .-- - -- .--.------. - - ... -- --- -.-.... --. +-.-- . ~ -.. ..- -. --- 'T-- +. . . .... --- '-'--'- .--... -.. -'-- .-. - .. ---
20% I .. ;Lot Sales -- AS ~ I 50,858 'i 28,948 ~; 60,000 TO-YAL-Al ·_--f·-------------··--------- ---'''1 --I I' ! 

CAPITALiMPROVEMENTRE~)ERVES-·- '---r-$["'-'--' -····-201,4·15--; .. $t··--· 76,399-;----$---"- . "19j', iio 
····------r --.,.--" -.... .-------.. ---.-+_ .. _-- . '--'=. ========4 

. --- -f~J-----=--=~-==--=---==t·+.::~=:~=~=p:-::~=.:::=·::.. j=-~~.::::=----
r_. _____ L_.JCAPITAL EXPENDITURES 1 ___ ~ __ ._._ .--.- .. -----I--.-L ... --- .. _______ : __ L __________ _ 

100044/45: !Fumiture& Fixtures I $~. 10,000 I! 1,369 : , 10,000 .. --.------r-.--.-- --"--- --.---.----t--.. ------. ._-.----
100416-**1 iNew Equipment i 50,000: 2,048:' 50,000 

. -- -- ---,.- -·-f----·--·------·------·---+-·---· ... ------.-------.----!-.---t-- -"---'-'- ---~. -~---- --"'-~-I 
100413114; i Road Replacement & Resurfacing! 30,000 ! : ° :: 30,000 ------r--- I .~-------- T .---l-______ . __ T ___ ---L~ __ { __ T ___________ ~_ ••••••• -----.-----

100420-** fi Land Development-New Cemete~ I 150,000 ! f 31,787 i; 840,000 
}.~i30:QlL. __ ~~is::.~~~-Improvements (C) ~=r~=.=-~=~~~i.0001-·~C=-.~~~· -19,95ot---T·-·----·--Ts-:Ooo-
...... 0412-01 i ! Exit Road - Cathedral i 1 20,Ooor- I o!: 20,000 -. ---.~--... -~-----.--------.--------. -, ~'--' ·t---·--_····· ----;~n_r----r--·--·--···- -- -.. ------,---.... --------

v category : Improvements to Ball Run Dramage I 100,000 ! ! ° :: 190,000 
•• ---.-••• -- --:-- __ TO - .--.-•• -------•• ~.-- •• _------••• _-----r----, . 

- ... : --... --. ----.------ -.--.----.-~. -·-1---·------ ~--- ---.L -.... -------... ----\--.-~--. -... ---.---
-.. -L---.... ------------.-----L $; 380,000 I $' 55,154' $ 1,165,000 

I I : I I . I 

L ! 1 I , . 1 

TOT"ALCAi"ITAL EXPENDITURES· -----r-·$r------380,OOOr$f·- ---55,i5~-~·-l}65_:OOO-

~:_=~ .. -F1~~~-~=-' r J __ .===-±3==:::===-.- ;_:-:~..: 
R.:EPORT ()l'iDEVELOP~EN.T/CAPITAL IM_f!.~E~IEN~ FU.N.'..!; __ -il _____ ._ .... _ .. ___ : __ ~ ... ____ .. _____ _ 

Opening Balances: ~ i : . 
WSFs-r'- 1 .------- i· , ---~-·-I -----6,42-3---: --.-'- 6,475 
PNC~--'+-'-r----- I -----------o-L-t·--·-----· -l;sooiT----··-ljOO 
.. --; ---.L-r-·-·_·--- . .--------.. -+-+------.- -. -.. ----:------r----~ 
_~'.s_a~_s~~~~!_L. ____ . __ .. ______ -h 108,901!! ti2,751!: 40,000 

~:irY::t:~ii!~;!!~:cf;~;-s;i-~--·-·------~--~--·-----~M-~!~~+-Jt---·-~~~·~~~1-..Jr--- ·--·-1:~:~~~ 
.... --- .-- .. -.------.-.. ----.--. -.---.- .-----. ----.--.---.- ---'-r-'---" . ----.-.-/--- -, ....... -.. ---------.---.-.... ----.---.--.-
Net Operating RevenuelDeficit i i (171,787)1 i (124,817),. (166,643) 
D-;p~~~iati-;;~'-'; --.. ---- .. - --." - .-- - .. -..... ----- ···t·-t-.. - .. r ... --.- --'244))00-1' .. --,-- .. -··-133:i8-7-~-·------·276:000 
'T~-t~I'A~;-il;bi~ io;-C;Pit~I'E~i~;;;dit~;;;--"-- -$1 387,515 I'" $: 155,543 :--i 351,052 
'--- .... -..... -.. --- ---.-...... - .-. -t-----··-··-····· .. ---. --, .. ---. ---.--- ...... -......,.-----'-- ... --- ... -.-----
~ithdra~~al frorn...P~!~op~~~t Fund for New Cern. 1 ___ . __ -.-.£--.-L------ __ £ __ ,___ 840,000 
Anticipated Expenditures (see detail above) I ; . (380,000) , . (55,154) . (1,165,000) 

·-~:·~=~-~r:~T===~= ________ .1=_~~-.--. ____ . ___ .... _~-.------.---J_j .. ---,--1 

-,)TALBALANCE -DEVELOPMENT/ I $1 7,515 i $i 100,389! $ 26,052 
------------ - ... ------------~--l--"--. . ----=========l 

~~!~.!~.~~~~~IT~.!~D _ .. _. _____ +_ L. __ ..... _. __ ._ ~ .... _L_ .. __ .----.-.---t--.. +----.--- - -- .. ---

. --. :~I~~~:-=:-:=:-:: . :::~~~~~·j--l~AGE#6:1··· .~ ..... ··-:;-::~F=~:~=:~= 
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• Budget summary for the six years ending June 30,2003 
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Two Commerce Squa-e, Suitt! 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19' 03-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 330 3300 

To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Wilmington, De~aware 

Report ofIndependent Accountants 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Catholic Diocese Foundation (the 
Foundation) as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 and the related statements of activities and changes in 
'net assets and cash flows for the years then ended_ These financial statements are the 
responsibil ity of the Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
Sta~es of iill1erica, which require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about \vhether the fmancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes exa:nining on a test basis, ev:'dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the ove::all :6.nancial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide.a reasonable basis for our o?inion . 

. The Foundation has not adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SF AS 93), 
"Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-:Profit Organizations," which requires not-for-profit 
organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future economic benefits of their 
long-lived tangible assets. Also, equipment is expensed at the time of purchase that, in our 
opinion, shOuld be capitalized in order to conform to accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. The effects of not complying with SF AS 93 and of not capitalizing 
equipment are not reasonably determinable. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of not recognizing depreciation expense oflong-lived 
tangible assets and of not capitalizing equipment as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the 
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Foundation as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Our audits were made for the p:.Irpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The supplemental schedules of grants payable as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis a:1d are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. Such information as of June 30,2002 and 2001 has been subjected to the aUditing 
procedures applied in t:"le audit ofthe basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation tei the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

September 27, 2002 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Balance Sheets 
As of June 30,2002 and 2001 

2002 

Unrestricted' Restricted 

Designated 

Assets Genenll Development Special Total France Grimes 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 701,015 $ $ $ 701,015 $ $ 

Pooled investments 37,876,223 (361,357) 7,007,995 44,522,861 25,000 509,982 

Notes receivable 447,198 412,498 859,696 

Real estate 7,752,134 7,752,134 

Total assets $ 46,776,570 $ 51,141 $7,007,995 $53,835,706 $ 25,000 $ 509,982 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accrued expenses & Other $ 70,000 $ $ $ 70,000 $ $ 

Grants payable 425,000 425,000 

Total liabilities 495,000 495,000 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 46,281,570 46,281,570 

Unrestricted - desigoatt:u 51,141 7,007,995 7,059,136 

Temporarily restricted 359,184 

Permanently restricted 25,000 150,798 

Total net assets 46,281,570 51,141 7,007,995 53,340,706 25,000 509,982 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 46,776,570 $ 51,141 $7,007,995 $53,835,706 $ 25,000' $ 509,982 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements, 
- 3 -

2001 

Total Total Total 

$ $ 701,015 $ 665,104 
534,982 45,057,843 50,695,519 

1:159,696 '922,985 
7,752,134 7,460,752 

$ 534,982 $ 54,370,688 $ 59,744,360 

$ $ 70,000 $ 20,000 
425,000 505,000 

495,000 525,000 

46,281,570 51,004,682 
7,059,136 7,626,149 

359",184 359,184 412,731 
175,798 175,798 175,798 

534,982 53,875,688 59,219,360 

$ 534,982 $ 54,370,688 $59,744,360 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Balance Sheets 
As of June 30, 2001 

A~~ets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Pooled investments 
Notes receivable 
Real estate 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accrued expenses 
Grants payable 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 
Unrestricted - designated 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restlicted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2001 

Unrestricted Restricted 

Designated 

General Development Special Total France Grimes 

$ 665,104 $ $ $ 665,104 $ $ 
42,665,006 (374,749) 7,816,733 50,106,990 38,421 550,108 

488,820 434,165 922,985 
7,460,752 7,460,752 

$ 51,279,682 $ 59,416 $7,816,733 $59,155,831 $ 38,421 $ 550,108 

20,000 20,000 
255,000 250,000 505,000 

275,000 250,000 525,000 

51,004,682 51,004,682 
59,416 7,566,733 7,626,149 

13,421 399,310 
25,000 150,798 

51,004,682 59,416 7,566,733 5ll,630,831 38,421 550,108 

$ 5 I ,279,682 $ 59,416 $7,816,733 $59,155,831 $ 38,42 I $ 550, 108 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
- 4-

Total 

$ 

588,529 

$ 5R8,529 

412,731 
175,798 

588,529 

$ 588,529 

Total 

$ 665,104 
50,695,519 

922,985 
7,460,752 

$ 59,744,360 

20,000 
505,000 

525,000 

51,004,682 
7,626,149 

412,731 
175,798 

59,219,360 

$59,744,360 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2002 

._-.. ~ ,.-"'- -----,-- ~ -----,-,-

Unrestricted Temporarily Restricted Pennancntly Rcstr-lcted 

Revenue: 
Pooled investment income (loss) 

Other investment income 

Gain 011 sale of assets 

Rental income 

Other i llcom" 
Net assets released ITom 

rcstric.tions 

Total revenue 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Grants • parishes 

Grant. - Diocesan agencies 

Grants - Don·Diocesan agencies 

Total program services 

Supporting services: 

ACL'Ounting and administration 
Professional fees 

Mass stipends 
Real estate holding costs 

TOIaI supportill~ services 

Total expenses 

Cbanges iunel assets 

Net assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end ofycar 

Designated 

Gener~1 Development Special Tol~1I France Grimes Total France 

$ (3,067,142) $(18,250) $ (558,738) $ (3,M4,130) $ (3,26[) $ (40,126) $ (43,387) $ 

16,448 9,975 26,423 

20,605 20,605 

103,432 103,432 

10,160 10,160 (10, [60) (10,160) 

(2,916,497) (8,275) (558,738) (3,483,5JO) (13,421) (40,126) (53,547) 

1,1l2,OOO 1,112,000 

225,000 225,000 

318,000 318,000 

1,655,000 1,655,000 

27,275 27,275 

20,731 20,731 

240 240 

103,369 103,369 
------

151,615 151,615 

1,806,615 1,806,615 

(4,723,112) (8,275) (558,738) (5,290,125) (13,421) (40,126) (53,547) 

51,004,0112 59,416 7,566,733 58,6JO,83 t IJ,42l 399,3 \0 412,731 25,000 -----
$46,281,570 $ 51,141 $7,007,995 $53,340,706 $ $359,184 $359,184 $25,000 

The accompanying notes are an intcgral part ofthc financial statements. 
- 5 -

Grimes Total 

$ $ 

150,798 175,798 

$150,798 $175,198 

Total 

$ (3,687,517) 
26,423 

20,605 

103,432 

(3,537,057) 

1,112,000 

225,000 
318,000 

1,655,000 

27,275 

20,731 

240 

103,J69 

151,615 

I,ROo,o15 

(5,343,672) 

59,219,360 

$53,875,688 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
statement of Activities and Changes inNet Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30,2001 

Unrestricted Temporarily Restricted 

Dcsignated 

General Developmcnt Special Total France Grimes Total 

Revenue: 
Pooleu investment income (loss) $ (1,241,261) $(23,548) $ (211,481) $ (1,476,290) $ (1,049) $ (15,408) $ (16,457) 

Other iuvestment income 35,905 5,2,50 41,155 

Gain on sale of assets 140,631 140,631 

Rental income 10,430 10,430 

Other income 4,151 4,151 

Net a~sets released flOllI 

restrictions 1,584 1,584 (1,584) (1,584) 

Total revenue ( 1,048,560) (18,298) (211,481) (1,278,339) (2,633) (15,408) (IR,041) 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Grants - parishes 626,400 626,400 

Grants - Diocesan agencies 1,338,202 1,:nS,202 

Grants - nOll-Diocesan agencies 251,800 750,000 1,001,800 

Total program services 2,,2,16,402, 750,000 2,966,402 
--~--

Supporting services: 
Accounting and administration 14,368 14,368 

Pro tessional fees 26,881 21l,RRI 

Mass stipendS 900 900 

Real estate holding costs 183,205 183,205 

Total supporting sClvices 225,354 225,154 

Total expenses 2,4'11,756 750,000 3,191,756 

Changes in net assets (3,490,316) (18,29l!) (961,481) (4,470,095) (2,633) (15,408) (18,041) 

Net assets at beginnlug of year 54,494,998 77,714 8,52,8,214 63,100,92.6 16,054 414,718 43U,772 

Net assets at end of year $ 51 ,004,682 $ 59,416 $7,566,733 $ 58,630,831 $13,421 $399,310 $412,731 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
- 6 -

Permanently Restricted 

France Grimes Total Total 

$ $ $ $ (1,492,747) 
41,155 

140,631 
10,430 
4,151 

(1,296,380) 

626,400 
1,338,202 
1,001,800 

2,966,402 ----
14,368 
26,8BI 

900 
183,205 

225,354 

3,191,756 

(4,488,136) 

2,5,000 150,798 175,798 63,707,'\96 

$ 25,UOO $150,798 $175,798 $59,219,360 



Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Cash. flows from operating activities: 
Changes in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net 

cash used in operating activities: 
Net depreciation on pooled investments 
Gain on sale ofreal estate 
Land grant 

. Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accrued expenses 
Grants payable ' 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments 
Reinvestment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Proceeds from sale of real estate 
Purchase of real estate 
Issuance of notes receivable 
Repayments of notes receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

2002 

$ (5,343 1672) 

4,478,291 

50,000 
(80,000) 

(895,381) 

1,950,159 
(790,774) 

(291,382) 

63,289 

931,292 

35,911 
665,104 

$ 701,015 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe financial statements. 
-7-

2001 

$ (4,488,136) 

2,567,278 
(140,631) 

1,073,092 

(4,418) 
(251,365) 

(1,244,180) 

2,489,575 
(1,074,531) 

165,018 
(706,566) 

(25,000) 
51,207 

899,703 

(344,477) 
1,009,581 

$ 665,104 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
The Catholic Diocese Foundation (the Foundation) was established in 1928 for the promotion of 
Catholic Religion, Catholic Education, and charity in the Catholic ,Diocese of Wilmington. The 
Foundation assists parishes in becoming established, aids in their expal1sion, and funds programs of 
education and charity. Generally, a substantial portion of the revenue for the Foundation is generated 
through income on investments. 

Basis of Reporting 
The Foundation reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts· of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
Resources are reported for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the 
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset classifications 
follows: 

• "'Cnrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations 
and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors 
such as by contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have 
not been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

Unrestricted funds have been designated to the Development and special funds to be used for the 
development of new ministries and facilities and as a reserve fund, respectively. 

Contributions 
Noncash contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash and 
other non-capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the contributions 
are received with donor stipUlations that limit the use ofthe donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is 
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions 
which are received and expended within the same fiscal year are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

-8-
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30 t 2002 and 2001 

Pooled Investments 
Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statements of activities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unreaHzed gains and losses, net of consulting and 
cu'stodial costs . 

. The Foundation participates with the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) and other 
affiliated organizations in an investment pool which is held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The 
pool is invested in a combination affixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such a~ interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in 
the market value of investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. . 

Kotes Receivable 
Balances include receivables to be repaid by parishes at the Bishop'S discretion as well as receivables 
with definitive repayment terms. Certain notes receivable maintained by the Foundation in fiscal 
years 2002 and 2001 were non-interest bearing. 

Real Estate 
Real estate consists of buildings and land. All acquisitions are capitalized at cost, when purchased, or 
at fair value at date of gift, when donated. The: properties were acquired with the intent that they 
would be used for future Diocesan. needs. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SFAS 93), "Recognition of Depreciation by 
Not~for-Profit Organizations," requires not-far-profit organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost 
of using up the future benefits of their long-lived tangible assets. The Foundation has not adopted 
SF AS 93. Also, equipment is expensed at the time of purchase that should be capitalized in order to 
conform to generally accepted accounting principles. The effects of not complying with SFAS 93 and 
of not capitalizing equipment are not reasonably determinable. 

Grants Payable 
Grants payable are unconditional promises to give that have been expensed in the period pledged. 

2. Pooled Investments 

The composition of pooled investments as of June 30, 2002 and 200 I was as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 
Domestic equity 
Intemational equity 

Total pooled investments 

2002 

$ (443,303) 
13,704,966 
24,628,947 

7,167,233 

$45,057,845 

2001 

$ (470,584) 
14,779,685 
29,049,726 

7,336,692 

$ 50,695,519 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30,2002 
and 200]. 

-9-
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2002 and 2001 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 consisted of the following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net depreciation 

Pooled investment loss 

2002 

$ 790,774 
(4,478,291) 

$(3,687,517) 

2001 

$ 1,074,531 
(2,567,278) 

$(1,492,747) 

The pooled investment loss was net of custodial and advisory fees in the amounts of $331,315 and 
$336,699 for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

3. Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable at June 30, 2002 and 200 1 were as follows: 

The following receivables, principally land grants, are to be 
repaid at the Bishop'S discretion and are non-interest bearing: 

St. Margaret Scotland 

The following receivables have payment terms as stated below: 
St. Catherine of Siena (construction) - payable in 16 semiannual 

installments of $6,250 beginning in June 1995, non-interest bearing 
St. Joseph on the Brandywine (Cemetery) - interest is 3% for 

10 years, due October 1. Principal payments should begin 
October 1, 20(}4 in the amount of $25,000 per year 

St. Luke's and St. Andrew's (building acquisition) - payable in 
180 monthly payments of $1 ,906 with 6% interest, beginning 

. September 1998 
St. Patrick (parking lot) - payable in 15 annual installments of 

$10,000 beginning in December 1994, non-interest bearing 
St. Francis de Sales (property acquisition) - annual 

interest only for five years until January 2001, then payable in 
30 semiannual installments of$5,834 plus interest at 3% 

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton (capital improvements) - payable in 
10 annual installments of $20,000, beginning July 2004, 
non-interest bearing 

St. Patrick (capital improvement) - due Kovember 2003, 
non-interest bearing 

Total notes receivable 

-10-

2002 2001 

$ 28,000 $ 28,000 

6,250 25,000 

125,000 125,000 

262,948 285,820 

55,000 65,000 

157,498 169,165 

200,000 200,000 

25,000 25,000 

$859,696 $ 922,985 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financiar Statements 
JI;.me 3D, 2002 and 2001 

4. Rental Income 

TQe Foundation has rental agreements with tenants who rent houses and farmland owned by the 
Foundation. The terms of the rental agreements vary from property to property. Total rental income 
for the years ended June 30,2002 and 2001 was $20,605 and $1 0,~30, respectively. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

Certain members of the Foundation's board are also board members of certain affilia ted corporations. 

The Foundation rents office space from the Diocese. Total rental expense for the years ended June 30, 
2002 and 2001 was $2,136 and $2,052, respectively. In addition, the Diocese provides administrative 
services for the Foundation. Employees are paid by the Diocese and all related payroll costs are 
reimbursed by the Foundation. Total labor expense including payroll taxes for the years ended 
June 30,2002 and 2001 was $10,623 and SlO,207, respectively, and is included as accounting and 
administrative expenses in the statements of activities. 

The Foundation awarded grants to the followL."1g related organizations: 

Parishes 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
St. Mark's High School 
St. Francis Hospital 

2002 2001 

SI,112,OOO 
175,000 
50,000 
25,000 

$626,400 
185,110 

80,000 
750,000 

In 2001, the Foundation awarded a land grant at book value to Diocese of Wilmington Schools, Inc. 
for $1,073,092. 

Grants payable to related parties as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 amounted to $425,000 and $505,000, 
respectively. 

Certain buildings owned by the Foundation are used by Catholic Charities, Inc. without charge. The 
estimated fair value of the contributed facilities usage is not significant. 

6. Income Taxes 

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal 
taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

-11-

DOW 03191 



Supplemental Schedules 

DOW 03192 



Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Supplemental Schedule of Grants Payable 
As of June 30, 2002 

Diocese of Wilmington 

Diocese of Wilmington 

Diocese of Wilmington 

St. John's/Holy.Angels 

St. Mark's High School 

Deacon's Formation 

Bishop's Discretionary 

Legal fees 

Capital Improvements 

Capital Improvements 

-12-

Purpose Payable 

$100,000 

25,000 

50,000 

200,000 

50,000 

S425,000 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Supplemental Schedule of Grants Payable 
As of June 30, 2001 

Deacon's Formation 
Bishop's Discretionary 

Legal fees 

Purpose 

Diocese of Wilmington 

Diocese of Wilmington 

Diocese of Wilmington 
St. Mark's High School Capital Improvements and Car 

St. Francis Hospital Capital campaign 

-13-

Payable 

$100,000 

25,000 
50,000 

80,000 

$255,000 

$250,000 
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To the 'Board of Directors 
Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Wilmington, Delaware 

Repo,rt of Independent Accountants 

PricewaterhouseCoopers UP 
Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700 
2001 Market Street 
Philadelphia PA 19103-7042 
Telephone (267) 330 3000 
Facsimile (267) 3303300 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Catholic Diocese Foundation (the 
Foundation) as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 and the related statements of activities and changes in net 
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Foundation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conduced our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining 
on a tes.t basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes accessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Vie believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

The Foundation has not adopted Statement for Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SFAS 93), 
"Recognition of Depreciation by Not-for-Profit Organizations," which requires not-for-profit 
organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost of using up the future economic benefits of their Iong­
lived tangible assets. Also, equipment is expensed at the time of purchase that, in our opinion, should 
be capitalized in order to conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. The effects of not complying with SFAS 93 and of not capitalizing equipment are not 
reasonably determinable. 

In our opinion, except for the effect of not recognizing depreciation expense of long-lived tangible 
assets and of not capitalizing e.qtiipment as discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in a1l material respects, the fmancial position of the 
Foundation as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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To the Board of Directors 
Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Wilmington, Delaware 
(Page 2) 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as 
a whole. The supplemental schedules of grants payable as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
infonnation as of June 30, 2000 and 1999 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

October 6, 2000 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Balance Sheets 
As of June 30, 2000 and 1999 

2000 

Unrestricted Restricted 
Designated 

Assets General Development Special Total France Grimes 

Cash $ 1,009,581 $ $ $ 1,009,581 $ $ 

Pooled investments 45,915,343 (372,286) 8,528,214 54,07.1,271 41,054 565,516 

Notes receivable 499,192 450,000 949,192 

Real estate 7,851,665 7,851,665 

Total assets $ 55,275,781 $ 77,714 $8,528,214 $63,881,709 $ 41,054 $565,516 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accrued expen~es 24,418 24,418 

Grants payable 756,365 756,365 

Total liabilities 780,783 780,783 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 54,494,998 54,494,998 

Unrestricted - designated 77,714 8,528,214 8,605,928 

Temporarily restricted 16,054 414,718 .. 

Pennancntly restricted 25,000 150,798 

Total net assets 54,494,998 77,714 8,528,214 63,100,926 41,054 565,516 

Total liabilities lind net assets $ 55,275,781 $ 77,714 $8,528,214 $63,881,709 $ 41,054 $565,516 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 

1999 

Total Total Total 

$ $ 1,009,581 $ 346,682 
606,570 54,677,841 50,341,496 

949,192 2,233,533 
7,851,665 7,997,784 

$ 606,570 $ 64,488,279 $60,919,495 

24,418 18,000 
756,365 828,315 

780,783 846,315 

54,494,998 51,835,238 
8,605,928 7,701,813 

430,772 430,772 360,331 
175,798 175,798 175,798 

606,570 63,707,496 60,073,180 

$ 606,570 $ 64,488,279 $60,919,495 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Balance Sheets 
As of June 30,1999 

1999 
Unrestricted Restricted 
Designated 

Assets General Development Special Total France Grimes 

Cash $ 346,682 $ $ $ 346,682 $ $ 

Pooled investments 42,411,203 (369,022) 7,763,186 .49,805,367 36,304 499,825 

Notes receivable 1,692,026 541,507 2,233,533 

Real estate 7~997,784 7,997,784 

Due to/from Special Fund 225,000 (225,000) 

Total assets $ 52,672,695 $ 172,485 $7,538,186 $ 60,383,366 $ 36,304 $499,825 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accrued expenses 18,000 18,000 

Grants payable 819,457 8,858 828,315 

Total liabilities . 837,457 8,858 846,315 

Net assets: 
Unrestricted - general 51,835,238 51,835,238 

Unrestricted - designated 163,627 7,538,186 7,701,813 

Temporarily restricted 11,304 349,027 

Permanently restricted 25,000 .150,798 

Total net assets 51,835,238 163,627 7,538,186 59,537,051 36,304 499,825 

Totalliabililies and net assets $ 52,672,695 $ 172,485 $7,538,186 $60,183,366 $ 36,304 $499,825 

The accompanying notes arL' an integral part ofthe financial statements. 

Total Total 

$ $ 346,682 
536,129 50,341,496 

2,233,533 
7,997,784 

$ 536,129 $60,919,495 

18,000 
828,315 

846,315 

51,835,238 
7,701,813 

360,331 360,331 
175,798 175,798 

536,129 60,073,180 

$536,129 $60,919,495 
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c~ olic Diocese Foundation 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2000 

Unrestricted Temporarily Restricted Permanently Restricted 

D"si~nated 

General Development Special Total France Grimes Total "'I'ance Grimes Total 

Revenue: 
Pooled investment income $ 5,536,073 $ (12,870) $ 990,028 $ 6,513,231 $ 4,750 $ 65,691 $ 70,441 $ $ $ 

Other investment income 24,253 5,249 29,507. 

Gain on sale of assets 14,047 14,047 

Rental income 70,040 70,040 

Other income 9,540 9,540 

Total revenue ..2:.653,953 (7,621) 990,028 6,636,360 4,750 65,691 70,441 

. Expenses: 
Program services: 

Grants· parishes 1,252,138 1,252,138 

Grants· Diocesan agencies 296,365 296,365 

Grants - non-Diocesall agencies 111,668 111,&68 

Total program services 1,660,l7I 1,660,171 

Supporting services: 
Accounting and administration 12,948 12,948 

Profcssiona I fees 23;794 23,794 

Mass stipends 940 940 

Real estate holding costs 111,178 1 I 1,In -----
TOl"dl supporting services 148,860 148,860 

Total expenses 1.809,031 1,809,03l ----
Changes in net assets before transfer 3,R44,922 (7,621) 990,028 4,827,32') 4,750 65,691 70,441 

Equity !Tansfer - deb! forgiveness (1,185,162) (78,292) (1,263,454 ) 
---,-~ 

Changes in net assets after trnllsfer 2,659,760 (85,913) 990,028 3,563,875 4,750 65,691 70,441 

Net assets at beginning of year 51,835,238 163,627 7,538,186 59,537,051 11,304 349,027 360,331 25,000 ]50,798 ]75,798 ----
Net assets at end of year $54,494,998 $ 77,714 $8.528,214 $63.100,926 $]6,054 $414,718 $ 430,772 $25,000 $150,798 $175,798 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements, 

Total 

$ 6,583,672 
29,502 
14,047 
70,040 

9,540 

6,706,801 

1,252,138 
296.365 
111,66& 

1,660,171 

12,9411 
23,794 

940 
111,178 -----
H8,860 

1,!;o9,031 

4,897,770 
(1,263,454) 

3,634,3 J (, 

60,073,180 

$63,707,496 
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C )Iic Diocese Foundation 
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended June 30, 1999 

Unrestricted Tempurarily Restricted Permllnently Restricted 

Desi~nated 

General Development Special Total France Grimes Total France Grimes TDtal 

Revenue: 
Pooled investment income $ 3,177,035 $ (15,980) $ 523.874 $ 3,684,929 $ 2,548 $ 33,392 $ 35,940 $ $ $ 

Other investment income 14,416 9,768 24,184 

Con tributions 24,218 24,218 

Rental income 6,550 6,550 

Other income 75,000 75,000 -----
Total revenue 3,222,219 (6,212) 598.874 3,814,8RI 2,54R 33,392 35,940 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Grants ~ parishes 791,653 228,300 1,019,953 

Grants - Diocesan agencies 436,004 436,004 

Grants· non-Diocesan agencies 291,250 291,250 

Total program services 1,518,907 228,300 1,747,207 

Supporting services: 
Accounting and administration 14,083 - 14,083 

Professional fees 19,343 19,343 

Mass stipends 1,060 1,060 

Real estate holding costs 120,119 120,119 
--. .... ,---

Total supporting services 154,605 154,605 ---
Total expenses 1,673,512 228,300 1,901,812 

Changes in net assets 1,548,707 (6,212) 370,574 1,913,069 2,548 33,392 35,940 

Net assets at beginning of year 50,286,531 169,839 7,167,612 57,623,982 8,756 315,635 324,391 25,ODO ISO,79R 175,798 

Net as~ets at end of year $ 5 t ,835,238 $ 163,627 $7,538,186 $ 59,53 7,051 $ll,J04 $ 349,027 $360,331 $ 25,0()0 $ 150,798 $175,798 

The accompanying notes are an integral pa11 of the financial statements_ 

TDla.1 

$ 3,720,869 
24,184 
24,218 

6,550 
75,000 

3,S50,82! 

1,019,953 

436,004 
291,250 

1,747,207 

14,083 

19,343 
1,060 

120,119 

154,605 

1,901,812 

\,949,009 

58,124,171 

$60,073,180 



Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended June 30,2000 and 1999 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Changes in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets. to net 

cash used in operating activities: 
Forgiveness of notes receivable 
Net appreciation on pooled investments 
Gain on sale of real estate 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accrued expenses 
Grants payable 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Amounts drawn from pooled investments 

Rein,(estment of interest and dividends into pooled investments 
Proceeds from sale of real estate 
Purchase of real estate 
Issuance of notes receivable 
Repayments of notes receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase/( decrease) in cash 
Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 

2000 1999 

$3,634,316 $1,949,009 

1,263,454 
(5,664,639) (2,223,836) 

(14,047) 

6,418 
(71,950) (184,255) 

(846:448) (459,082) 

2,247,327 5,803,532 
(919,033) (1,497,033) 

167,166 
(7,000) (3,875,517) 

(28,000) (399,345) 
48,887 44,918 

1,509,347 76,555 

662,899 (382,527) 
346,682 729,209 

$1,009,581 $ 346,682 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

-7-
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2000 and 1999 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Operations 
The Catholic Diocese Foundation (the Foundation) was established in 1928 for the promotion of 
Catholic Religion, Catholic Education, and charity in the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington. The 
Foundation assists parishes in becoming established, aids in their expansion, and funds programs of 
education and charity. A substantial p0rtion of the revenue for the Foundation is generated through 
income on investments. 

Basis of Reporting 
The Foundation reports using the accrual basis of accounting. The preparation of financial statements 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 117, "Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit Organizations." Resources are reported 
for accounting purposes into separate classes of net assets based on the existence or absence of donor­
imposed restrictions. A description of the three net asset categories follows: 

• 'Unrestricted Net Assets include those assets that are available for the support of operations 
and whose use is not externally restricted, although their use may be limited by other factors 
such as by contract or board designation. 

• Temporarily Restricted Net Assets include gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have 
not been met and pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted. 

• Permanently Restricted Net Assets include gifts, trusts, and pledges which require by donor 
restriction that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made available for 
operations in accordance with donor restrictions. 

Contributions 
Contributions are recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 116, "Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made." Noncash 
contributions are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Contributions of cash and other non­
capital assets are reported as temporarily restricted operating revenue if the contributions are received 
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that 
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor restricted contributions, which 
are received and expended within the same fiscal year, are reported as unrestricted revenues. 

Pooled Investments 
Pooled investments are stated at fair value. Pooled investment income on the statements of activities 
includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses, net of consulting and 
custodial costs. 

-8-
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 

The Foundation participates with the Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. (the Diocese) and other 
affiliated organizations in an investment pool which is held in a custody account at Mellon Trust. The 
pool is invested in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. 

The investment pool is exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risk. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments and the level of uncertainty related to changes in 
the market value of investments, it is,at least reasonably possible that changes in risks in the near term 
could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. 

Notes Receivable 
Balances include receivables to be repaid by parishes at the Bishop's di;scretion as well as receivables 
with definitive repayment terms. Certain notes receivable maintained by the Foundation in 1999 were 
non-interest bearing. In 2000, these notes receivable were forgiven. 

Real Estate 
Real estate consists of buildings and land. All acquisitions are capitalized at cost, when purchased, or 
at fair value at date of gift, when donated. The properties were acquired with the intent that they 
would be used for future Diocesan needs. 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 93 (SFAS 93), "Recognition of Depreciation by 
Not-far-Profit Organizations," requires not-for-profit organizations to recognize depreciation as a cost 
of using up the future benefits oftheir long-lived tangible assets. The Foundation has not adopted 
SF AS 93. Also, equipment is expensed at the time of purchase that, in our opinion, should be 
capitalized in order to conform to generally accepted accounting principles. The effects of not 
complying with SFAS 93 and of not capitalizing equipment are not reasonably determinable. 

Grants Payable 
Grants payable are unconditional promises to give that have been expensed in the period pledged. 

2. Pooled Inyestments 

The Foundation invests in a combination of fixed income and equity securities and mutual funds. The 
composition of pooled investments as of June 30,200'0 and 1999 was as follows: 

2000 1999 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed income 
Domestic equity 
International equity 

$' (464,424) 
17,086,294 
29,118,943 

8,937,028 

$ (336,504) 
14,205,063 ~,I ~:'lt 
29,147,131 ~~. -' ,~ 

f (//" 7~325,806 

Total pooled investments $54,677,841 $50,341,496 

The fair value of these investments was determined based on quoted market prices at June 30,2000 
and 1999. 

-9~ 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2000 and 1999 

Pooled investment income for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999 consisted of the following: 

Interest and dividends 
Net appreciation 

Pooled investment income 

2000 1999 

S 919,033 
5,664,639 

$6,583,672 

$1,497,033 
2,223,836 

$3,720,869 

The pooled investment income was net of custodial and advisor)' fees in the amounts of $3 65,231 and 
$254,275 for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

3. Notes Receivable 

Notes receivable at June 30, 2000 and 1999 were as follows: 

The following receivables, principally land grants, are to be 

repaid at the Bishop's discretion and are non-interest bearing: 
Church of the Holy Child 
Holy Family 

ResUI,Tection Parish 
St. Catherine of Siena 
St. Dennis 

Sf. Michael the Archangel 

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton 
St. Joseph, Middletown 

St. Luke's and St. Andrew's 

St. Luke's and St. Andrew's 
st. Matthew 
St. Polycarp 

St. Margaret Scotland 

-10-

2000 1999 

$28,000 

28,000 

$ 58,000 

6,800 
50,000 

100,000 

69,400 
71,256 

181,500 

112,710 
259,900 

71,251 
35,000 

20,000 

1,035,817 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 3D, 2000 and 1999 

The following receivables have payment tenus 

as stated below: 

Capuchin Poor Clare Nuns, Inc. (property acquisition) -
payable at the discretion of the Board of Directors of 
the Foundation, not callable until 2012, non-interest bearing 

St. Catherine of Siena (construction) - payable in 16 
semiannual installments of $6,250 beginning 
in June 1995, non-interest bearing 

St. Joseph on the Brandywine (Cemetery) - interest is 3% 
for 1 ° years, due October 1. Principal payments 
should begin October 1, 2004 in the amount of 
$25,000 per year 

St. Luke's and St. Andrew's (building acquisition) -
payable in 180 monthly payments of$1,906 with 
6% interest, beginning September 1998 

St. Francis de Sales (property acquisition) - 3% interest only 
payments of$2,230 due March, 10 year semiannual 
principal payments of $3,829 beginning March 2002 

St. Patrick (parking lot) - payable in 15 annual installments of 
$10,000 beginning in December 1994, non-interest bearing 

Immaculate Conception, Marydale (property acquisition)­
terms require 2 years of semi-annual interest 
only payments beginning in November 1994 at 
4%, then 16 semiannual payments of $5,875, 
which include interest. The 16 payments of S5,875 
have been deferred and began November 1997 

St. Francis de Sales (property acquisition) - annual 
interest only for five years until January 2001, then 
payable in 30 semiannual installments of $5,834 
plus interest at 3% 

St. Elizabeth Ann Seton (capital improvements) - payable 
in 10 annual installments of 5)20,000, beginning 
July 2004, non-interest bearing 

Total notes receivable 

2000 1999 

$ 75,000 

$ 37,500 50,000 

125,000 125,000 

308,692 331,864 

74,345 

75,000 100,000 

66,507 

175,000 175,000 

200,000 200,000 

921,192 1,197,716 

$ 949,192 $2,233,533 

During the year ended June 30, 2000, Sl,263,454 of notes receivable were forgiven. 

-11-
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2000 and 1999 

4. Rental Income 

The Foundation has rental agreements with tenants who rent houses and farmland o\\'11ed by the 
Foundation. The terms of the rental agreements vary from property to property. Total rental income 
for the years ended June 30,2000 and 1999 was $70,000 and $6,550, respectively. 

5. Related Party Transactions 

Certain .members of the Foundation's board are also board members of certain affiliated corporations. 

The Foundation rents office space from the Diocese. Total rental expense for the years ended June 30, 
2000 and 1999 was $1,956 and $1,872, respectively. In addition, the Diocese provides administrative 
services for the Foundation. Employees are paid by the Diocese and all related payroll costs are 
reimbursed by the Foundation. Total labor expense including payToll taxes for the years ended 
June 30, 2000 and 1999 was $9,671 and $11,776, respectively, and is included as accounting and 
administrative expenses in the statements of activities. 

The Foundation awarded grants to the following related organizations: 

Parishes 
Catholic Diocese of Wilmington, Inc. 
St. Mark's High School, Inc. 

2000 1999 

$1,252,138 
218,365 

78,000 

$1,019,953 
319,476 

63,000 

Grants payable to related parties as ofJune 30, 2000 and 1999 amounted to $756,365 and $828,315, 
respectively, as detailed in the supplemental scheduI es of grants payable. 

Certain buildings owned by the Foundation are used by Catholic Charities, Inc. without charge. The 
estimated fair value of the contributed facilities usage is not significant. 

6. Income Taxes 

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation which has been granted exempt status from federal 
taxation under Section 501 (c )(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

-12-
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Supplemental Schedule of Grants Payable 
As of June 30, 2000 

Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese 'of \Vilmington 

Holy Name of Jesus 
St. Mark's High School 
Christ Our King School 
St. Paul's School 

Purpose 

School's technology person 
Deacon's Office Budget 
Bishop's Discretionary 
Legal fees 

Capital Improvements 

Capital Improvements and Car 
Operating budget 
Operating budget 

-13-

Payable 

$ 45,000 

98,365 
25,000 
50,000 
50,000 
78,000 

185,000 
225,000 

$ 756,365 
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Catholic Diocese Foundation 
Supplemental Schedule of Grants PayabJe 
As of June 3D, 1999 

St. Mark's High School 
St. Helena School 

Diocese o{ \-Vilmington 

Diocese of Wilmington 

Diocese of Wilmington 

Diocese of Wilmington 

St. Mark's High School 
St. Paul's School 

Christ Our King School 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Diocese of Wilmington 
Children's Home 

Purpose 

Compute;r equipment for library and classroom 
Build new school entrance 
Bishop's discretionary 
Legal fees 

School's technology person 
Deacon fonnation 

Nun's car/second floor hallway renovation 
Operating budget 
Operating budget 

Religious education cooperative 

Lay ministry/collaborative summits 
Capital improvements 

-14-

Payable 

$ 60,000 

60,000 
20,000 

50,000 

45,000 

95,257 

63,000 
225,000 

150,000 
26,000 

25,200 

8,858 

$828,315 
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